
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 1, 2024 

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings 
will continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection 
details. Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is LOW; masks 
are not required.  
 

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in 
person and on Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on 
Zoom. 
 

II. Public Hearing(s) 
A. Northeast Lobster Co. LLC d/b/a The Nor’ Easter 10 Huntington Rd, Northeast 

Harbor request for Special Amusement Permit 
 
III. Minutes 

A. Approval of minutes from March 11, 2024 meeting 
B. Approval of minutes from March 18, 2024 meeting 

 
IV. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

A. Request appointment of Mitchell Burr as a paid on-call Firefighter to the Mount 
Desert Fire Department, effective April 2, 2024, at a starting pay of $18.00 an hour 

B. Request appointment of Jaden Gordon as a part-time seasonal employee in the 
Building and Grounds division at an hourly rate of $25.00 per hour effective June 
17,2024 ending on or before September 13,2024 

C. Request appointment of Micheal Gibson as a part-time seasonal employee in the 
Waste Management division at an hourly rate of $25.00 per hour effective May 
6,2024 ending on or before October 14, 2024 

 
V. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  

Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Shellfish Committee Minutes from June 1, 2023 
B. Shellfish Committee Minutes from January 11, 2024 
C. Shellfish Committee Minutes from February 15, 2024 
D. Warrant Committee Minutes from March 12, 2024 
E. US Small Business Administration - Disaster Assistance to Businesses and Residents 

of Maine Affected by Severe Storms and Flooding 
  
VI. Selectboard’s Reports 

 
 
 
 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda April 1, 2024 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

VII. Unfinished Business 
A. Completion of Internet Access to unserved properties 
B. Consideration of amending the motion made at the January 16, 2024, Select Board 

meeting authorizing Chief Mike Bender to purchase a new 2024 GMC 3500HD pick-
up truck in the amount of $56,320.00 to authorizing purchase of said pick-up truck in 
the amount of $56,445.00 

 
VIII. New Business 

A. Northeast Lobster Co. LLC d/b/a The Nor’ Easter 10 Huntington Rd, Northeast 
Harbor request for Liquor License Renewal and Special Amusement Permit Renewal 

B. Public Space Special Event Application – Wedding – Suminsby Park; October 19, 
2024 3 – 4 pm; Paul Pottle 

C. Request for Town of Mount Desert support for research of PFAS contaminates in the 
northeastern Somes Sound area – presentation by Dr. Jane Disney, MDI Biological 
Laboratories 

D. Consider approval of the DOT signage on the intersection of Rts. 102 and 3, and 
Eagle Lake Rd (Rt. 233) Somesville for Golf of Maine 

E. Request from Otter Creek Residents to install a dry dump, a light-duty take out mast 
and boom, and a short extension on the float at the Otter Creek Landing 

F. Request permission to apply for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) on 
behalf of the Mount Desert Housing Authority in the amount of $238,000 to support 
Fire Safety upgrades at the Maple Lane Apartments in Northeast Harbor 

G. Acceptance of the gift of $2,000 from Friends of Acadia to be used toward the 
purchase of a Speed Display Sign for Jordan Pond Road 

H. Proposal of Election Day Closures 
I. Request approval to pay Norwood Delaittre & Sons Inc $2,100.00 for the repair work 

out of the Seal Harbor Docks CIP reserve #6410200-24600 the account has a 
balance of $83,709.92 

 
 
IX. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 

Business or out of order.) 
 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
 

 
X. Treasurer’s Warrants 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 
Town Invoices AP#2460 04/02/24 $156,824.10 
 AP#2461 04/02/24 $32,739.42 
Total   $189,563.52 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2458 

 
03/20/24 

 
$108,688.70 

 AP#2459 03/27/24 $2,157.06 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda April 1, 2024 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Town Payroll PR#2423 03/29/24 $177,902.85 
Total   $288,748.61 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below:  
School Invoices   $0 
School Payroll PR#20 03/29/24 $209,668.61 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
 

 
 

 
$0 

Total   $209,668.61 
 
Grand Total   $687,980.74 

 
XI. Adjournment 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Tuesday, April 16, 2024 in the Meeting 
Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 
The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  





Public Hearing
Special Amusement Permit

The Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing at its regular meeting 
which begins at 6:30 p.m., Monday, April 1, 2024 in the Location: Zoom 
Meeting- see Board of Selectmen Meeting for connection details for the 
consideration of:
Special Amusement Permit application for Class E – Dancing with any of 
the above or accompanied by music produced by radio or other mechani-
cal device -Single instrumentalist, single instrumentalist and vocalist, one 

Northeast Lobster Co., LLC d/b/a The Nor’easter Pound & Market

Bar Harbor

On Tuesday, February 20, 2024 the Bar Harbor Town Council ad-
opted an amendment to the Boards, Committees, and Commissions 
Ordinance to correct inconsistencies. The ordinance amendment 

The full ordinance amendment is available at the Town Clerk’s 
-

der Latest News. Call the Town Clerk at 207-288-4098 for more  
information.

Town of Tremont

The Town of Tremont Planning Board will 
conduct a site walk at 5:30pm on April 
2nd, 2024 for the proposed “Libhart Family 
Lands” Subdivision by W. Peter Libhart. It is 
located at Captains Quarters Rd and identi-

048, 048A, 048A-1, & 049. The public may 
attend.

The application may be reviewed at Tremont 

NOTICE TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS
DETERMINATION OF CATEGORICAL  

EXCLUSION

TO: All Interested Persons DATE ISSUED: March 13, 2024
As required by Section 6 of the State of Maine Rules Relating 
to Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund Chapter 230, the Department 

Categorical Exclusion” on behalf of AOS 91 - Tremont Consolidated School 
of Bass Harbor, Maine to exempt a proposed project from the formal envi-
ronmental review requirements.
The proposed action is the remediation of PFAS in drinking water.
The Drinking Water Program’s review of the proposed actions has indicated 

-
tation, minor upgrade, or minor expansion of existing facilities.
Therefore, a Categorical Exclusion from formal environmental review as 
provided in Section 6 of the State of Maine Rules Relating to Drinking Water 
State Revolving Loan Fund Chapter 230 is being granted. This exclusion 
may be revoked at any time if 1) the project is altered and no longer meets 
the requirements of a categorical exclusion 2) new evidence shows that 
serious environmental issues exist or 3) a local, State or Federal law is be-
ing or may be violated.

-

Comments relative to this decision may be submitted to the Department of 
Health and Human Services Drinking Water Program.

PUBLIC NOTICE
TOWN OF SOUTHWEST HARBOR

Bar Harbor

Notice: This is to inform the public that under the authority provided in Section 125-
61 F. (1). of the Bar Harbor Land Use Ordinance, the Planning Board, on Wednes-

SD-2023-04 – Brigadoon Acres Subdivision.
Purpose: Under the requirement in Section 125-61 F. (2), the only issue to be con-
sidered by the Planning Board at the hearing on Wednesday, April 3, 2024, is wheth-
er the application and proposed development comply with the review standards set 
forth in sections 125-67, 125-68, and 125-69 of the Bar Harbor Land Use Ordinance.
Applicant/Owner: Brigadoon Acres, LLC - Christopher Bettencourt and Denise 
Carey Bettencourt (41 Mystic Valley Parkway, Uxbridge MA 01569)
Application: 
Project Location: -
ing a total of ±179 acres, as surveyed.
Districts:
and Stream Protection Districts
Public Review:
review in the Planning and Code Enforcement Department, which is located in the 
Municipal Building at 93 Cottage Street in Bar Harbor. It is also posted on the Plan-
ning Board webpage at https://www.barharbormaine.gov/282/Planning-Board.
How to Comment:

In Writing - You may forward your comments in writing to the Planning Board 
at 93 Cottage Street, Bar Harbor, Maine 04609 or by email at planningboard@
barharbormaine.gov by Monday, April 1, 2024.
At the Meeting – At the Wednesday, April 3, 2024 meeting, the Planning Board 
shall entertain public comment.

Meeting Location:
meeting will be held in person at the Bar Harbor Municipal Building located at 93 
Cottage Street, and if so, if remote participation will be an option, or if the meeting 
will be entirely remote, go to https://www.barharbormaine.gov/282/Planning-
Board after 4:00 PM on Friday, March 29, 2024.
Anyone with a disability wishing to attend this meeting and who may have questions 
about how to do so should contact Tammy DesJardin at tdesjardin@barharbor-
maine.gov or at (207) 288-3329.
Questions: mmoreno@barharbormaine.
gov or (207) 288-1156.

cwoolfolk
Highlight

cwoolfolk
Highlight

cwoolfolk
Highlight

cwoolfolk
Highlight

cwoolfolk
Highlight

cwoolfolk
Highlight

cwoolfolk
Highlight





























MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 1 
 

 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Selectboard Minutes 2 

March 11, 2024 3 
 4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Chair John Macauley, Rick Mooers, Martha Dudman, Geoff 5 
Wood, Wendy Littlefield 6 
 7 
Town Officials and Department Heads Present:  Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Tax Assessor 8 
Kyle Avila, Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Fire Chief Mike Bender, Public Works Director Brian 9 
Henkel 10 
 11 
Members of the Public were also present. 12 

 13 
I. Call to order at 6:00 p.m. 14 
Chair Macauley called the Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   15 

 16 
II. Executive Session 17 

A. Pursuant to 1 MRS§405(6)(E) so the Board may confer with its legal counsel concerning 18 
the Board’s rights and duties in a pending matter 19 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, the Board enter into Executive 20 
Session. 21 
Motion approved 5-0. 22 
 23 
The Board entered into Executive Session at 6:01 p.m. 24 
 25 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, the Board leave Executive Session 26 
and return to the meeting. 27 
Motion approved 5-0. 28 
 29 
The Board left Executive Session and returned to the meeting at 6:40 p.m. 30 

 31 
III. Public Hearing(s) 32 

A. Town Meeting Proposed Warrant Articles for Ordinance Amendments, and Ordinances 33 
(Note:  LUZO ordinance articles had public hearings on 2/14/2024 and 02/28/2024)  34 

Chair Macauley stated that several Selectboard Members have identified themselves as 35 
potentially having conflicts of interest with regard to the Short-Term/Vacation Rental Licensing 36 
Ordinance.  The Selectboard will therefore not make a recommendation at this time. 37 
 38 
Chair Macauley opened the Public Hearing for the Short-Term/Vacation Rental Licensing 39 
Ordinance. 40 
 41 
Resident Sam McGee asked the following questions:   42 

- How many dwelling units does the town currently have?  43 
- Of those dwelling units, how many are owned by seasonal homeowners and not being 44 

used by year-round residents?  45 
- How do these numbers relate to the 10% cap? 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 2 
 

 
 

- What was the rationale behind the 10% cap?   1 
Mr. McGee stated his opposition to a cap.  He worried that seasonal homeowners would rush to 2 
sign up for licenses this spring if the ordinance is approved.   3 
 4 
Mr. Wood explained that the town does not know exactly how many properties are used 5 
exclusively as rental properties, whether through people living in Town for only a couple months 6 
or through people who have bought them for use solely as an investment property.  If a person 7 
owns a home that they occupy in the summer months, and intends to rent it, they will have to get 8 
a license to do so.   9 
 10 
Ms. Dudman reported that she was told there are 2,611 dwellings in the Town.  The Town 11 
estimates that there are approximately 420 rental properties currently in Town.  Those rental 12 
properties are a combination of what the draft ordinance terms “vacation rentals”, which are 13 
investment properties, and “short-term rentals”, which are rentals in their primary residence.  14 
10% of the 2,611 dwellings is 261.  The 10% cap only applies to vacation rentals.  There is no 15 
cap proposed for primary-residence rentals, or homes that can only be seasonal homes.   16 
 17 
Mr. Wood added that based on data the Town collected, even if 50% of the rental properties are 18 
deemed vacation rental properties, it does not reach the proposed 10% cap of 261 rental 19 
properties.   20 
 21 
Mr. McGee asserted that if the total is near the cap it creates an unfair situation where there are 22 
too few rental licenses and those that do not sign up quickly enough might be prohibited from 23 
renting and kept on a waiting list for years or subject to a lottery system that is arbitrary and 24 
unfair.  Mr. McGee reiterated his opposition to a cap.  Limiting the ability to rent will result in 25 
unfair and potentially unconstitutional outcomes where one class of property owners will benefit 26 
over another.   27 
 28 
Mr. Wood reported that safety issues, while valid, were not the driving force behind the 29 
development of a cap.  The cap is in response to the diminishing amount of available year-round 30 
housing.  A cap might keep homes from being sold to people who do not intend to live in them.  31 
It was hoped that at least the number of families currently living in Town could be maintained.  32 
More homes for year-round occupancy are needed.  There are many ways to approach the 33 
housing issue.  One way to address the issue is to limit the sale of homes to people with no 34 
intention of living in the community.   35 
 36 
Mr. McGee noted the specifics pertaining to his property.  He owns two inherited properties.  He 37 
was not living in the community at the time of his inheritance and if this ordinance had been in 38 
place he would have lost the properties.  Instead, he was able to short-term rent the properties 39 
until he was able to move back to the community full time.  He saw no point in voting for 40 
something that risks his or his children’s ability to do such a thing in the future.  He did not 41 
believe this was a viable solution to protect and provide more year-round housing in the 42 
community. 43 
 44 
Resident Allen Kimmerly reported he is a year-round resident and lives next to a short-term 45 
rental, which has not been a positive experience.  He pointed out that the Town designates a 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 3 
 

 
 

hotel as providing transient lodging.  If that is what a short-term rental does, then it should be 1 
allowed only in a commercial zone.  He noted the elementary school is declining in numbers, and 2 
those working in Town find it difficult to find a place to live locally.  He noted that dwellings 3 
could be rented by the year, instead of by the week.   4 
 5 
Kate Chaplin asked about the Board’s research in determining the efficacy of capping rentals and 6 
how capping rentals will result in more year-round housing.  Consultant Noel Musson reported 7 
this is a tool other communities have used.  It’s a relatively new tool; there’s not a lot of historic 8 
research that can be reviewed.   9 
 10 
Ms. Chaplin asserted that Rockland is considering reversing its cap because that town is not 11 
seeing a positive effect.  She reported a lot of research has been done in communities in the 12 
Western United States.  The research there shows that limiting short-term rentals, particularly in 13 
communities that rely on tourism, has a negative impact.  She stated that it does not create 14 
workforce housing or year-round housing.  Mount Desert is in high demand as a vacation 15 
destination.  Houses that can’t be rented will have to be sold, and they likely won’t be sold to a 16 
year-round resident, they will be sold to someone who does not need to rent the house, and then 17 
it will likely sit empty.  Short-term renters shop and eat in Town, and support groups like FOA 18 
and the library.  Short-term renters might retire to the area.  They bring a boost to the economy.  19 
Limits on short-term renting will make it harder for seasonal businesses to succeed.  She 20 
disagreed that short-term rental is taking over year-round housing.  The reason there are short-21 
term rentals is because people want to visit and it’s expensive to live here.  Most homeowners 22 
who live here or want to be here cannot afford not to rent.   23 
 24 
Ms. Chaplin works as a rental agent at the Knowles Company.  She estimated: 25 

- 11% of rentals in Mount Desert are owned by people who reside in the Town of Mount 26 
Desert and the rental is an inherited second property or it was purchased with the intent to 27 
rent it.   28 

- Only a small percent live in the dwellings in the winter months and then move out for the 29 
purpose of renting them.  30 

- 1.8% are what she would consider investment-only rentals.  She acknowledged that many 31 
investment owners don’t use a rental agency like Knowles.  Therefore, she suggested 32 
estimating the investment rentals at triple or quadruple her 1.8% estimation.   33 

o Of the 1.8% she’s aware of, two were inherited by the owners and they have to 34 
rent them to afford keeping them in the family.   35 

o A third was once used by a homeowner, but he’s no longer able to use it.   36 
- 9% of the houses she represents were removed from the year-round housing market in the 37 

past ten years, most often because the owner passed away or it was sold by the second 38 
generation or sold by elderly owners out of necessity.  Those houses were sold to people 39 
who could afford to pay a higher value for them.   40 

- 86% of homes she represents were never designed or intended to be lived in year-round.   41 
- 56% are owned by family groups who inherited the home.   42 

 43 
 44 
Resident Greg Dalton reported just having come from an Island Housing Trust (IHT) meeting.  45 
He noted that this draft ordinance appeared to be similar to Bar Harbor’s, and IHT board 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 4 
 

 
 

members have reported Bar Harbor’s ordinance has done nothing to help Bar Harbor with their 1 
affordable housing issues, which is why organizations like IHT exist.  He noted the ordinance’s 2 
administrative challenges in Bar Harbor have been great.  He felt a solution was being proposed 3 
before the Town is sure there’s a problem.  The Town should be mindful of trying to manage the 4 
issue in this way.  Doing so did not accomplish what Bar Harbor hoped it would.   5 
 6 
Resident Meghan Savage reported that she may likely rent her home in the future.  While paying 7 
a nominal fee might be acceptable, she’s curious as to what the fees will go to.  Will it cover only 8 
enforcement and management, or will it be invested in building affordable housing or other 9 
potential solutions?  She objected to the concept of paying for something that would be policing 10 
what she can do with her home, while doing nothing to address the bigger problem.   11 
 12 
Town Manager Lunt reported the fee will be for administration and enforcement.  He felt it was a 13 
conservative fee resulting in an overage of funding.  If that occurs, the Town will decide what 14 
could be done about any funding overage.  An overage could potentially go to things like 15 
building affordable housing or other problem solving.   16 
 17 
Ms. Dudman agreed with Ms. Savage that it was a good idea.  The Town has discussed creating 18 
ways to do something about the problem.   19 
 20 
Resident Randy Merchant did not believe the fees would generate $100,000.00 or more in 21 
administration costs.  Manager Lunt disagreed.  He reported that a data collection company 22 
reviewing the numbers came in at over $400,000.00.  Manager Lunt says a more conservative 23 
number is around $250,000.00, but it could be close to double.  The proposed fees are $250.00 24 
for short-term rentals, and $500.00 for a vacation rental.   25 
 26 
Mr. McGee asked for more information on the fee structure and the rationale behind the fees 27 
being charged.  Has an estimate been done regarding the administrative costs?  Has any 28 
consideration been given to the potential for legal opposition and litigation?   29 
 30 
Manager Lunt reiterated that the fee structure is based on two categories.  Short-term rentals are 31 
owner-occupied rentals and will be charged $250.00.  Vacation rentals are investment properties 32 
that are not otherwise lived in and will be charged $500.00.  The Town has not incorporated into 33 
the estimates any legal costs.  There’s always the chance that by the following year changes will 34 
be necessary.    35 
 36 
Mr. McGee asked for specifics pertaining to his property.  What will occur if he builds an 37 
accessory dwelling unit on his property that he rents out on a short-term basis.  Mr. Wood stated 38 
such a rental would be considered a short-term rental, meaning the property on which the rental 39 
exists is occupied enough days of the year that the person occupying the property is a resident of 40 
the Town.  A license would be required for each unit being rented on the property, and the fee is 41 
proposed to be $250.00 per license.  Additionally, summer rentals, those not available for year-42 
round rental, would also fall under short-term rental.  There will be no cap on short-term rentals.   43 
 44 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Mr. Wood noted that some rentals are inherited summer homes and renting allows the 1 
homeowner to pay the taxes and keep their homes.  Because no one calls such a home their 2 
residence it falls under vacation rentals.   3 
 4 
Ms. Dudman explained that the intent is to try to preserve as much year-round housing as 5 
possible.  A home that is not winterized is likely not included in the year-round housing stock.  6 
Those rentals will not be capped.   7 
 8 
Ms. Savage asked what enforcement of such an ordinance will look like.  Ms. Dudman explained 9 
that the Deputy Code Enforcement Officer (CEO) will oversee ordinance implementation.  The 10 
Deputy CEO won’t have the time to inspect each rental property.  When people apply for their 11 
license, they’ll be asked questions regarding the type of rental it will be.  As with any licensing 12 
agreement, there must be some level of trust that people are telling the truth.  If a complaint is 13 
received the Deputy CEO will then make an inspection.   14 
 15 
Craig Roebuck stated he worked for the U.S. Census and he recognizes the housing problem in 16 
the Town.  He reported that there are many rental properties in Town, the majority of which are 17 
owned by out of state owners.  He agreed some of those might be inherited properties.   18 
 19 
Ms. Chaplin clarified that a large majority of homeowners she represents live out of state and 20 
own because they want a vacation home on Mount Desert Island.  They rent those homes out in 21 
order to afford them.   22 
 23 
Ms. Chaplin asserted the town was classifying three different types of houses.  She stated that 24 
short-term rentals are owner occupied, meaning the owner lives in them year-round and then 25 
moves out or otherwise vacates the home, but for the majority of the year the owner is living in 26 
the house.  Ms. Dudman noted such a rental is a long-standing tradition in the Town.   27 
 28 
Ms. Chaplin noted that a seasonal rental has been mentioned as a home that has not been 29 
winterized.  She asked about the classification of the larger summer estates that were never used 30 
year-round and are not affordable by the average Mount Desert resident, but are insulated, with 31 
central heating, central air conditioning, on year-round wells, and could technically be lived in 32 
year-round.   33 
 34 
Mr. Wood explained that if no one considers it their primary residence, then it falls under 35 
vacation rental.  Ms. Chaplin was concerned about the cap set by the Town for this type of rental.   36 
 37 
Ms. Dudman stated that anyone currently renting a short-term rental or a vacation rental can 38 
continue to do so under the draft ordinance, as long as they license the rental and renew the 39 
license each year.   40 
 41 
It was stated that questions from those on Zoom must be asked verbally.  Questions in the chat 42 
function of Zoom would not be addressed. 43 
 44 
Renter Doug Spurling reported he does not live on Mount Desert Island.  He is a professional 45 
short-term rental manager.  He owns rental dwellings all over the country.  He resides in 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Kennebunkport.  He asserted that the CEO in Kennebunkport resigned due to the Town’s short-1 
term rental ordinance there because they were overwhelmed with the administrative workload 2 
required to maintain the system.  He believed the fees would only generate $60-$80,000.00.  He 3 
did not believe it would cover a salary or any legal costs incurred.  Austin Texas was taken to the 4 
Supreme Court which determined that renting a private property is a residential activity.  Mr. 5 
Spurling asserted that Zillow has an average price in this Town of $857,000.00 for a residence.  6 
Maine’s affordable housing is approximately 20% to 30% of annual income, which equates to a 7 
monthly payment of $1600.00.  Houses like those on Zillow will have a higher monthly payment 8 
than $1600.00.  Homes that are short-term rentals are not the same as affordable housing.   9 
 10 
Mr. Spurling pointed out that he was not a resident but he was a taxpayer.  He took issue with 11 
being treated differently.   12 
 13 
With regard to occupancy limits, Mr. Spurling noted the occupancy limit in the draft ordinance is 14 
stated as two people per bedroom.  He suggested using septic code requirements as a way to 15 
more accurately determine occupancy limits.   16 
 17 
Mr. Spurling asked for clarification on the problem approving this ordinance would solve.  He 18 
did not believe it would help the affordable housing situation.  He warned there could be 19 
constitutional rights repercussions on a national level.   20 
 21 
David Short asked for specifics pertaining to his property.  It is not winterized, and it is not his 22 
primary residence.  Discussion seemed to imply that his property would be considered a short-23 
term rental and not subject to a cap, but he did not believe that was how the ordinance reads.  His 24 
residence is owner-occupied for most of the summer and then rented out for four or five weeks to 25 
offset the taxes and expenses.  Mr. Short was opposed to a cap.  If his property is a seasonal 26 
rental the difference in the fee is not fair.  He did not buy this property as a commercial 27 
enterprise and should not have to pay a higher fee.   28 
 29 
Mr. Musson explained the three rental classifications stated in the draft ordinance. 30 

- Short-Term rental – based on whether or not the dwelling is a primary residence for tax 31 
purposes.   32 

- Seasonal Vacation rental – not a year-round structure.  33 
- Vacation rental – a year-round structure that is not a primary residence for tax purposes.   34 

 35 
The Short-Term rental and the Seasonal Vacation rental are treated exactly the same in the 36 
ordinance.  A renter must get a license, but there is no cap.  Only the Vacation rental is subject to 37 
a cap in the draft ordinance.  Mr. Short suggested making that clearer in the ordinance.   38 
 39 
Resident Kathy Miller voiced support for the draft ordinance.  She believed a cap was necessary.  40 
The Town’s Economic Development Committee has been supporting it.  It’s always been 41 
included in the Comprehensive Plan to bring back a more robust year-round population and more 42 
affordable housing.  There’s been a tradition on the island of people renting out their houses.  43 
But the balance is changing.  She knows of several people who’ve lost their year-round rental 44 
because it’s now a short-term rental.  It’s impossible to find a place to live in Mount Desert.  45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 7 
 

 
 

There’s been a negative impact on local businesses and the school.  She believed the Town must 1 
find a balance.   2 
 3 
A man who did not identify himself believed more affordable housing needed to be built.  He 4 
believed house prices were too high and interest rates on mortgages were too high to result in an 5 
affordable monthly payment.  Ms. Dudman agreed that more affordable housing was necessary.  6 
She reiterated that this draft ordinance was intended as one piece of a complicated puzzle.  7 
Suggestions and ideas coming up at this meeting can be incorporated into the draft ordinance.   8 
 9 
Resident Laura Smallidge asserted the draft ordinance oversteps the Bill of Rights, is 10 
unconstitutional, and a violation of the 10th Amendment.  The town cannot dictate how many 11 
people can stay in a house or what the house can be used for.  She believed year-round housing 12 
was historically a problem on the island.  She stated any fees charged should be a flat fee.  She 13 
suggested tabling the entire ordinance.   14 
 15 
Chair Macauley clarified that the Town’s residents will vote on whether or not to enact the 16 
ordinance, not the Selectboard.  17 
 18 
Jennifer Feltwell asked for specifics pertaining to her property.  She and her husband are in the 19 
military and hope to retire to their home in Otter Creek, but rent it out to be able to afford it.  20 
This is the only home they own.  She would like to pass it along to her children.  She wants them 21 
to be able to rent it out so they can afford to keep it.  She asked if her home was considered their 22 
primary residence.  If they move out to rent it out, is a permit required?   23 
 24 
Mr. Musson explained that if the house is their primary residence for tax purposes, then it would 25 
be considered a short-term rental.  Mr. Wood noted that military personnel have different options 26 
as far as maintaining their residence because they are required to move.  If this home is Ms. 27 
Feltwell’s legal residence, then it would be considered a short-term rental.  It was reiterated that 28 
there are no caps on short-term rentals. A license would be required.  If the home becomes Ms. 29 
Feltwell’s children’s primary residence, then there is no cap and a license would be required.  30 
Mr. Musson stated there is a process in the ordinance for those rentals considered vacation 31 
rentals that allow an owner to transfer their license to their children.  Even if the cap were 32 
exceeded at that time, the license would be grandfathered.  As long as such a license was 33 
renewed every year, the license remains in place.  If the new owners fail to license the rental by 34 
the deadline, the license would no longer be valid. 35 
 36 
Ms. Feltwell inquired whether the Town had considered changing additional dwelling unit 37 
requirements to increase housing.  She asserted she was not allowed to build another dwelling 38 
unit on her property because of the zoning laws.  Mr. Musson stated the Town is working on 39 
density.  There are provisions that will be addressed at the Town meeting that will allow most 40 
lots in Town to have an accessory dwelling unit on it.  The Shoreland Zone density is controlled 41 
by the State and not the Town.   42 
 43 
Voting will take place at Town Meeting May 7, 2024.   44 
 45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 8 
 

 
 

Joyce Morrissey asked for specifics pertaining to her property.  She owns a seasonal rental rented 1 
spring through fall.  She does not live in the rental.  If she were to sell the rental, would a license 2 
transfer to the buyer.  Mr. Musson explained that the way the draft ordinance is written, if the 3 
property is not a primary residence, it would be considered a vacation rental.  There is a cap on 4 
vacation rentals.  If there are more vacation rentals than the number of permits allowed at the 5 
time of ordinance implementation, the rental will be issued a license if the renter applies for a 6 
permit.  That license will continue to be honored as long as the renter registers for their license 7 
ever year.  If the renter fails to register for their license, or misses the deadline for registering, 8 
then the renter will lose their license.  There is a transferability clause in the draft ordinance 9 
which allows a vacation rental property owner to transfer their property if it’s sold to their 10 
children, or if it’s put in a trust or the framework of ownership changes.  If the property is sold to 11 
someone who does not fit into the definition in the draft ordinance then the license cannot be 12 
transferred.  The license would be honored that year.   13 
 14 
Todd Mydland asked about the parking restrictions in the draft ordinance.  The draft states the 15 
owner must provide sufficient offstreet parking for all overnight guests’ vehicles.  Garage 16 
parking spaces are not allowed for short-term rental or vacation rental guests.  Mr. Mydland 17 
asked for specifics pertaining to his property.  He has one vacation rental with no offstreet 18 
parking and only garage parking.  He has another vacation rental with two parking spaces.  Per 19 
the ordinance, that rental could be rented to a higher number of people.  He felt there needed to 20 
be clarification for those renters with limited offsite parking or no non-garage onsite parking 21 
availability.  He has a rental with a short driveway, but no additional room for parking unless the 22 
garage is allowed.  He requested the issue be revisited to allow maximum flexibility for onsite 23 
parking.   24 
 25 
A technical malfunction interrupted the meeting, and work ensued to repair it.  The Zoom 26 
function was temporarily offline and those participating remotely were unable to hear. 27 
 28 
Robert Zelinsky asserted that there were no legitimate concerns being addressed.  The draft 29 
ordinance would not fix the problem with affordable housing.  He asked what the Town was 30 
trying to fix by implementing this ordinance.   31 
 32 
Mr. Kimmerly noted that living next to a short-term rental can be unpleasant.  Additionally, there 33 
is a loss of neighborhood community environment. 34 
 35 
Resident Gail Marshall noted this type of rental is a completely unregulated market.  No system 36 
works well without some sort of regulation.  The Town has suffered a loss of community.  The 37 
Town struggles to put children in their school, there are no places for people working in this 38 
community to live in Town.  Thousands of people drive to the island to provide for those living 39 
here.  Those are the people that need this ordinance.  There is no single solution that will solve 40 
the problem.  The Town is working to create affordable housing and there was opposition to the 41 
attempt.  There’s been a lot of concern about each person’s personal situation, and it’s important 42 
to hear those concerns, but in the end, the Town must try to make decisions that are in the best 43 
interests of the community.  Ms. Marshall read the Maine Municipal Association’s legal advisory 44 
on short-term rental regulations for those in attendance concerned with the Town potentially 45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 9 
 

 
 

overstepping their oversight.  The legal advisory stated in summary that Towns are within their 1 
right to create short-term rental ordinances. 2 
 3 
The affordability problem in Town has changed dramatically in the past 10 to 20 years.  Whole 4 
neighborhoods that were once year-round housing are now empty.  It’s a multi-faceted problem 5 
and not just the fault of short-term rentals.  The Town needs to use all the tools they have at their 6 
disposal to restore and maintain a sense of balance in the community.   7 
 8 
Resident Katrina Carter pointed out that a prior draft ordinance was brought before the Town for 9 
inclusion in the Town Warrant and it was pulled because it was felt the draft was not ready and 10 
did not have the support of the Town.  She felt the Town is in the same position, with a draft 11 
ordinance opposed by people in Town.  The Board cannot make a recommendation due to 12 
possible conflicts of interest among the Board.  She inquired whether this draft ordinance would 13 
go to Town Meeting or be pulled.   14 
 15 
Ms. Dudman felt a lot of ideas and questions have been shared at this meeting, but questions 16 
would likely remain.  Ms. Dudman hoped that the Town would continue to work on the draft.  17 
This public hearing discussion would be continued to the Monday, March 18, 2024 meeting.  18 
Some further revisions will be made based on comments heard at this meeting.  Because of the 19 
potential for conflict of interest among the Selectboard, they will not make a formal 20 
recommendation regarding the draft ordinance.  However, the draft ordinance can be placed on 21 
the Warrant for discussion and vote at Town Meeting.   22 
 23 
Ms. Carter stated that she was on the Warrant Committee, and she could potentially have a 24 
conflict of interest, and there may be other Warrant Committee members that also have a 25 
potential conflicts of interest.  She asked how much time the Town has to consider revising the 26 
draft ordinance.  March 21, 2024 was the deadline for making changes and revisions to the draft 27 
ordinance.   28 
 29 
Tim Ford voiced concern regarding the discussion.  The draft ordinance is not a solution to 30 
affordable housing.  He believed it would create a wedge between year-round residents and 31 
seasonal residents.  He proposed creating a committee of year-round residents and seasonal 32 
residents.  He believed the seasonal residents were an important part of the community.   33 
 34 
Mr. Spurling suggested a flat fee for renting a property for all renters, and a requirement that 35 
safety requirements are met, and in the first year the Town might gain a better idea of how many 36 
rentals there are in Town.  He did not understand the need to separate out those whose primary 37 
residence is in Town and those not living here.  With regard to his rentals, he has noise 38 
monitoring at every property, rental agreements, security deposits, and the average age of his 39 
renters are in their 50s.  He rents as his full-time job and would argue that from a technical and 40 
systems standpoint he has his renting operation in better control than anyone else at the meeting.  41 
He noted that regardless of what the Maine Municipal Association’s legal opinion might be there 42 
is a growing number of lawsuits pushing back on rental rules across the country.  He asserted 43 
there are no Towns where setting a cap has been successful.   44 
 45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 10 
 

 
 

Elizabeth Escardo did not believe there was any purpose or validity to creating such an 1 
ordinance.  She opined that the ordinance should be thrown out completely.  She took exception 2 
to being told what can and cannot be done on her property.  She asserted that no studies have 3 
been done to back up what is stated as the purpose of the ordinance.  If a resident is having issues 4 
with a neighbor, then it’s an occasion to call the police.   5 
 6 
Resident Isaac Iverson suggested the Town look at past Land Use Zoning Ordinance rules.  He 7 
asserted that mobile home parks were once allowed.  Mobile homes are one of the most 8 
affordable home options and allow for more occupancy on a lot.  He believed that the money in 9 
the community should stay in the community.  Rentals that are not owned and managed by local 10 
people take money outside of the community.   11 
 12 
Chair Macauley stated it was the beginning of a long process.  He reiterated that the Selectboard 13 
would not be passing this draft ordinance into existence.  Town residents will vote on whether to 14 
approve or not the draft ordinance.   15 
 16 
In reply to Mr. Iverson, Mr. Musson noted that there is one zone in Town where mobile homes 17 
are allowed.  The comprehensive plan is being reviewed and revised, and it’s an opportunity to 18 
consider issues like mobile homes.   19 
 20 
Mr. Musson suggested creating a bullet point list of where the draft ordinance stands, and what 21 
the Town is considering changing, and how it will get to Town Meeting.   22 
 23 
Mr. Wood asked if Mr. Musson could speak to the State law changes to the local occupancy tax.  24 
Mr. Musson stated there is a need to have something in the State of Maine that keeps the tax 25 
revenues to some extent in the community.  Taxes for overnight accommodation currently goes 26 
to the state and does not stay with the community.   27 
 28 
Ms. Littlefield reiterated that the Board cannot vote to recommend the draft ordinance.  She 29 
noted the Warrant Committee may be in a similar situation, depending on how many committee 30 
members might have a conflict of interest.  She asked what the procedure would be in that case.  31 
Ms. Carter noted that the Warrant Committee vote count is included in the Warrant that goes to 32 
Town Meeting.  The number of abstentions would be included in that information as well.   33 
 34 
Warrant Committee Co-Chair Phil Lichtenstein explained that if the draft ordinance is put before 35 
the Town, the article will be worded in the positive.  Discussion of the article will ensue.  The 36 
draft ordinance is simply put on the warrant for discussion by the public.  The Warrant 37 
Committee does not have to make a recommendation.  The draft ordinance will be brought to the 38 
Town Meeting floor for public discussion and a vote.  Mr. Lichtenstein reiterated that the voters 39 
will decide whether or not to pass the draft ordinance at the Town Meeting.  Mr. Lichtenstein 40 
added that those whose primary residence is in the Town of Mount Desert and voters are often 41 
the same people.   42 
 43 
Ms. Littlefield noted the Board has listened to what has been said, taken notes, and recorded the 44 
meeting.  Work on the draft ordinance will continue at the next meeting, potentially with a 45 
revised draft ordinance.  She noted that, as Ms. Carter suggested, it may end up that an ordinance 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 11 
 

 
 

is not ready.  The Board will do their best to incorporate what is best for the community into the 1 
draft ordinance.  Ms. Littlefield noted there is a 45-day window between Town Meeting and the 2 
point at which a draft such as this can no longer be changed.   3 
 4 
Ms. Smallidge pointed out that the draft ordinance makes no mention of renting seasonally to 5 
workforce housing.  She took issue with renters paying for a license to assist the community by 6 
providing workforce housing.  Mr. Musson noted that if someone is renting for a timeframe of 7 
less than 28 days, it is not a short-term rental.  If someone is renting to a single person for a 8 
period of weeks or months, it is not a short-term rental.  If someone were renting in a combined 9 
way, weekly rental for a few weeks, and rental to a renter for a longer period of time, it would be 10 
a short-term rental.  Ms. Carter did not feel the draft ordinance made this clear.  11 
 12 
Resident Jerry Miller reported that those attending online via Zoom are having difficulty hearing 13 
the conversation.  He suggested ending the discussion and reconvening at a time when all can 14 
hear.  Sound could not be improved due to technical issues with the video equipment. 15 
 16 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to continue the Public Hearing to 17 
Monday, March 18, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 18 
Motion approved 5-0. 19 

 20 
IV. Post Public Hearing 21 

A. Action if necessary 22 
Per discussion on Agenda Item III.A, no action was taken by the Board at this time. 23 
 24 

V. New Business 25 
A. Municipal Officer’s Certifications of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances and 26 

Amendments (order that they appear on the ATM warrant) 27 
1. Alewife Ordinance 28 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acknowledgement of 29 
Municipal Officer’s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances and Amendments, 30 
Item 1. Alewife Ordinance, as presented. 31 
Motion approved 5-0. 32 
 33 
2. Amendment to the Town of Mount Desert Consumer Fireworks Ordinance 34 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acknowledgement of 35 
Municipal Officer’s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances and Amendments, 36 
Item 2. Amendment to the Town of Mount Desert Consumer Fireworks Ordinance, as 37 
presented. 38 
Motion approved 5-0. 39 
 40 
3. Amendment to the Town of Mount Desert Disbursement Warrant Ordinance 41 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acknowledgement of 42 
Municipal Officer’s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances and Amendments, 43 
Item 3. Amendment to the Town of Mount Desert Disbursement Warrant Ordinance, as 44 
presented. 45 
Motion approved 5-0. 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 11, 2024 
Page 12 
 

 
 

4. Amendment to the Town of Mount Desert Special Amusement Permit Ordinance 1 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acknowledgement of 2 
Municipal Officer’s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances and Amendments, 3 
Item 4. Amendment to the Town of Mount Desert Special Amusement Permit Ordinance, as 4 
presented. 5 
Motion approved 5-0. 6 
 7 
5. Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance 8 

a. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 6 Connections to Sewer 9 
b. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 3 Little Echo Lake Setback 10 
c. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 6 Individual Private Campsites 11 
d. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 3 Residential Dwellings 12 
e. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 5 Conditional Use Application Notices 13 
f. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 6 Residential and Accessory Dwellings 14 
g. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 7 CEO Permit Review Timeline 15 
h. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 7 Certificates of Occupancy Approval 16 
i. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 6 Lot Access 17 
j. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 8 Additions and Revisions to Definitions 18 
k. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 5 Subdivision Ordinance Amendments 19 
l. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 3.4 Clarification on Marine and 20 

Freshwater Structures 21 
m. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 4 Revisions to the non-conforming 22 

section of the LUZO 23 
n. Land Use Zoning Ordinance Article Section 3.3 Map 10 Zone Change 24 

MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acknowledgement of 25 
Municipal Officer’s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances and Amendments, 26 
Item 5. Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance, Items a 27 
through n, as presented. 28 
Motion approved 5-0. 29 
 30 
5. Short-Term/Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance 31 
Discussion was held under Agenda Item III. A. 32 
 33 

VI. Other Business 34 
A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 35 
There was no Other Business. 36 
 37 

VII. Adjournment 38 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to adjourn. 39 
Motion approved 5-0. 40 
 41 
The Meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 42 
 43 
 44 
Respectfully submitted,  45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
Geoffrey Wood 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Selectboard Minutes 2 

March 18, 2024 3 
 4 
 5 
Selectboard Members Present:  Chair John Macauley, Rick Mooers, Geoff Wood, Martha 6 
Dudman, Wendy Littlefield 7 
 8 
Town Officials and Department Heads Present:  Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Public Works 9 
Director Brian Henkel, Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Finance Director Mae Wyler, Town Clerk 10 
Claire Woolfolk 11 
 12 
Members of the Public were also present. 13 

 14 
 15 

I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 16 
Chair Macauley called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 17 
 18 
II. Public Hearing(s) 19 
A. March 18, 2024 Town Meeting Proposed Warrant Articles for the Appropriation of Funds  20 
Chair Macauley opened the Public Hearing.  He asked for Public Comment. 21 
 22 
Katrina Carter asked about a Warrant Article already voted on by the Selectboard.  She noted 23 
Chair Macauley wrote and voted on the third-party request article that he represented.  She 24 
wondered whether it was a Conflict of Interest.  Chair Macauley confirmed he had no financial 25 
interest with the third-party group he represented.  Further, the Selectboard does not vote on 26 
whether to approve a request.  Ms. Carter noted that she was a member of the Chamber of 27 
Commerce and normally she refrained from voting on their third-party request.   28 
 29 
There were no other comments. 30 
 31 
MOTION:  Ms. Littlefield moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to close the March 18, 2024 32 
Town Meeting Proposed Warrant Articles for the Appropriation of Funds. 33 
Motion approved 5-0. 34 
 35 
B. Continued from 3/11/2024:  Town Meeting Proposed Warrant Articles for Ordinance 36 

Amendments, and Ordinances (Note:  LUZO ordinance articles had public hearings on 37 
2/14/2024 and 02/28/2024)  38 

Chair Macauley opened the Public Hearing. 39 
 40 
Ms. Dudman recalled that several attendees at the last public hearing asked about the necessity of 41 
a short-term rental ordinance.  In response, Ms. Dudman stated that the year-round housing stock 42 
has eroded, and it’s had a negative effect on the community.  One of several factors exacerbating 43 
the housing stock problem has been the proliferation of short-term rentals.  Short-term rentals are 44 
currently unregulated and unquantified.  This draft ordinance is one tool to bring the community 45 
back into balance.  A lack of affordable housing is also a problem.  The LUZO Advisory 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 2 
 
Committee is working on the problem of affordable housing, for discussion at a future Town 1 
Meeting. 2 
 3 
Ms. Dudman explained the types of rentals affected by the draft ordinance: 4 
- Short-term rentals are defined as a rental at a resident’s primary residence.  There is no 5 
cap limiting this type of rental.   6 
- Seasonal vacation rentals are homes that cannot be used as year-round homes.  There is 7 
no cap limiting this type of rental.   8 
- Vacation rentals are residences that are owned by someone that doesn’t live in them.  9 
There is a cap proposed for these types of rentals. The cap will not go into effect until after 2025.    10 
- All properties will be required to get a license.  The license is renewable every year.   11 
 12 
An initial inspection of a rental home is not required by the draft ordinance.  An inspection 13 
would be required only if a problem were reported.   14 
 15 
Ms. Dudman noted that at the previous meeting it was suggested that any excess funds raised 16 
through the licensing be used to develop affordable housing opportunities.  The Town researched 17 
the possibility and found that State law prohibits charging more for a license than can be 18 
reasonably used for administering the license.  She noted that the Town supports the Island 19 
Housing Trust and their work creating affordable housing as one of the third-party requests.   20 
 21 
Mr. Wood added that the inclusion of the seasonal rental category was a result of previous public 22 
discussion.  The section regarding parking was changed to address concerns voiced at the 23 
previous meeting.   24 
 25 
Kate Chaplin noted a deadline change from March 31 to March 1.  The deadline was confirmed 26 
as March 1.   27 
 28 
The proposed 10% cap was calculated using the total number of housing stock. 29 
 30 
Mr. Musson presented a review of changes to the draft ordinance since the previous discussion.  31 
They include: 32 
- Clarification of how the different types of rentals are accounted for.   33 
- A change to the definition of a seasonal vacation rental, making it more reflective of what 34 
a seasonal dwelling is.   35 
- Clarification of what a short-term rental is. 36 
- Clarification that the Town is asking applicants to self-verify. 37 
- Self-compliance language has been included to confirm that an applicant is filling the 38 
form out to the best of their ability. 39 
- Clarification that there is no cap on the number of applications for vacation rentals during 40 
the initial registration period.   41 
- Simplifying the process so if the number of vacation rentals exceeds the number of 42 
available licenses, it’s first come-first served for getting on the waitlist.   43 
- Clarification of the transferability clause on a vacation rental.  The ability to transfer a 44 
rental to an owner’s parents has been added.   45 
- Clarifying the parking. 46 
 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 3 
 
A home that can be used as a year-round residence but is used only in the summer by someone 1 
living elsewhere, or a home owned by someone that does not consider Mount Desert their 2 
primary residence is a vacation home.   3 
 4 
Resident Anne Dalton reported that she had rental properties in the Town of Bar Harbor.  The 5 
first safety inspections consisted of fire personnel making a quick inspection of the home.  6 
Within a few years, the Town was requiring renters to bring all rental houses up to new 7 
construction standards.   8 
 9 
Resident Robert Zelinsky asked how a rental ordinance helps the year-round housing situation.  10 
Did the Board feel that those who can’t rent short-term will rent for less to a year-round renter?  11 
Ms. Dudman reiterated that no resident will have to give up their rental, as long as the property is 12 
licensed.  Limits on short-term rentals can slow the flow of residences being sold purely for 13 
vacation purposes.  People are willing to pay high prices on properties because they know they 14 
can make a high profit from it.  Mr. Zelinsky asserted that people pay high prices because the 15 
property is close to Acadia National Park.  There is no industry attracting year-round residents.  16 
This is a vacation community.  A year-round community cannot be revived without building 17 
affordable housing.   18 
 19 
Chair Macauley pointed out that affordable housing is not a part of the proposed short-term 20 
rental ordinance.  Mr. Zelinsky agreed, but reiterated that this proposed ordinance will not 21 
answer the question of providing affordable housing.  Mr. Wood didn’t feel the Board was 22 
assuming that vacation rental property owners would give up their properties.  In theory, this 23 
type of control will result in fewer of the existing residential properties being sold to investment 24 
owners who never plan to live in them.  Mr. Zelinsky asked if the Town believed house values 25 
would go down.  He asserted that there are no houses on Mount Desert Island for under 26 
$500,000.00.  He did not believe people would sell their house for less.   27 
 28 
Resident Katrina Carter asked about the vacation rental license and transferability.  If there’s a 29 
buyer looking at a vacation rental home that was not a primary residence, and they want to buy 30 
on the contingency that they are able to keep the vacation rental license, how far in advance can 31 
they apply for the license?  Mr. Wood noted that if at the time they purchase the rental cap has 32 
been met, then a new buyer would not have that option.  Ms. Carter inquired how interested 33 
parties would know how long the waitlist is at any given point.  Will the public know?  How will 34 
the waitlist be handled? 35 
 36 
Mr. Musson agreed the waitlist could be made public.  Ms. Carter clarified that her question was 37 
how far in advance a person can apply for a license for a property that’s already licensed as a 38 
vacation rental.  Mr. Musson stated that if the property is already a licensed vacation rental, and 39 
the cap is in place and the town has met the cap, unless the person purchasing the property is 40 
classified under the allowable transfer section, they would be required to go on the waitlist as a 41 
first-time renter.  A rental license cannot be applied for unless the applicant owns a property.  42 
 43 
Ms. Savage believed Bar Harbor allowed a license to transfer to new owners.   44 
 45 
Tim Thomas asked for further clarification on the difference between property owners who are 46 
residents and those that own to rent.  It was reiterated that a resident of the Town, renting their 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 4 
 
property would need to have a license to do so, but there is no cap on that type of license.  Mr. 1 
Wood added that if you have a home you use as your primary residence and that property has 2 
additional apartments you want to rent, each of those rentals will require a license.  He reiterated 3 
that the number of that type of rental in Town will not be capped.   4 
 5 
Resident Greg Dalton was pleased that the Town was looking at ways to address more affordable 6 
housing.  He envisioned a number of residents in Town obtaining a license to protect that right.  7 
He did not believe a short-term rental ordinance will do much for the Town.   8 
 9 
Laura Smallidge asked if the Town had tried to determine the number of year-round residents 10 
renting to supplement their tax bill or cover other expenses.  She asserted that the Town must 11 
first find out why residents rent.  The Town believes it’s important to have more year-round 12 
residents and to make housing more affordable.  She suggested the Town ensure that this 13 
ordinance isn’t hurting year-round residents.   14 
 15 
Resident Gail Marshall believed that while there was a time when the rental picture was that of 16 
Town residents renting their personal property to offset expenses, seasonal rentals has become a 17 
lucrative business and a completely unregulated market.  She recalled a renter at the last meeting 18 
that buys homes in states across the country, specifically as part of his rental business.  A recent 19 
New York Times article stated that Ellsworth Maine was the second-best place in the country to 20 
develop an Airbnb business.  This type of business makes the Town less of a community and 21 
more of a resort.  Many families have had to sell their property and leave, and their kids can no 22 
longer return to live on the island, and many are living just off-island to remain near.  She 23 
believed the use of the Town as a resort is now moving up the economic food chain.  People fear 24 
losing the ability to keep a property for their kids.  It’s understandable.  But the problem can’t be 25 
solved by making it an every-person-for-themselves situation.  The situation needs to be 26 
considered systemically.  This ordinance is one attempt.  With regard to affordable housing, the 27 
Town is in court because it tried to create affordable housing.  There is just as much opposition 28 
to creating affordable housing as there is to licensing rentals.  She hoped people could think 29 
about the issue not just in regard to their own personal interest, but in the interest of the greater 30 
community.   31 
 32 
Resident Mike Olson asserted he has multiple jobs to subsidize his income so he can live in this 33 
community.  He invested in a rental home to help, and the Town is now threatening that.  No one 34 
has benefitted from Bar Harbor’s rental ordinance, and many have been hurt.  He believed a 35 
Deputy CEO hired would eventually start taking overly strict action on renters.  He argued that 36 
school size and teachers living off island is not a new situation.  He graduated in 1989 as one of 37 
ten students.  He suggested that improvements to the town are funded by the summer community 38 
and affordable housing will occur when the summer community wants it.  While he realizes the 39 
draft ordinance is less stringent than Bar Harbors, he warned that Bar Harbor purported that they 40 
were simply looking for numbers in the beginning.  He believed this ordinance would be the end 41 
of the locals in Mount Desert. 42 
 43 
Ms. Littlefield stated that those who have spoken refer accusingly to the Selectboard as if they 44 
are somehow different than those in the audience voicing their concerns.  She herself is facing 45 
the possibility of having to sell a family home to afford living in the Town.  She had a family 46 
member who recently inherited a home and is seeking summer housing so she can rent it to 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 5 
 
afford the taxes.  She reminded those listening that the Selectboard is not approving the draft 1 
ordinance.  The draft will go to Town meeting to be discussed and voted on by all residents 2 
attending the meeting.   3 
 4 
Mr. Thomas asserted prices have tripled since he moved to the area.  Enacting such an ordinance 5 
will not drive prices down to workforce housing levels.  He stated there were communities across 6 
the country, some with more expensive homes, some with less.  This Town happens to have 7 
more expensive homes.   8 
 9 
Noah Burby agreed that prices on the island are high.  Perhaps enforcing this ordinance now will 10 
prevent home prices from rising more.  He hoped other tools could be found to bring community 11 
back to the Town.   12 
 13 
Tracy Aberman believed the Town is legislating just to legislate.  The Town should first define 14 
the problem to be solved, then solve the problem.  She asserted that nothing proposed will solve 15 
the problem of workforce housing and residents were not in favor of such an ordinance.  It’s an 16 
invasion of residents’ privacy and homes and their ability to survive.  Ms. Aberman pointed out 17 
that rental income is also used to pay for expensive home maintenance projects.  Additionally, 18 
rental properties hire landscapers and housekeepers.  There are a number of good things short-19 
term rentals do for the community that the Town is overlooking.  The Town should be solving a 20 
problem that creates more harm than good.  She was opposed to the ordinance. 21 
 22 
Renter Doug Spurling voiced his appreciation for the changes implemented in the draft since the 23 
previous conversations.  He noted that he attends a number of these types of meetings where no 24 
change occurs.  With regard to the process being unregulated, he didn’t believe anyone was 25 
saying they didn’t want to know the number of short-term rentals in Town or to register rentals.  26 
He was in favor of registering rentals.  He opposed capping the number of rentals allowed.  He 27 
asked about the data used to determine the cap to confirm it was the correct number and it would 28 
help solve the problem.   29 
 30 
Mr. Musson stated the cap was an attempt to compromise between those that wanted no cap and 31 
those that wanted a more stringent cap.  Mr. Spurling stated he did not know of a Town in the 32 
country that has enforced a cap that resulted in a positive impact on their community.   33 
 34 
Mr. Spurling asserted that his guests eat out and shop in the Town almost every night they stay at 35 
the rental property.  He did not believe residents supported the Town’s restaurants or shops to 36 
similar extent.  Renters are supporting the local businesses and not the residents.  Limiting 37 
rentals will have a negative impact on the local economy.   38 
 39 
Mr. Spurling took exception to the rule that he be treated differently because he was not a 40 
primary resident.  Mr. Musson reiterated that the draft ordinance was structured to acknowledge 41 
and protect the traditional use of renting people’s primary residences that has been in Town for 42 
years.  There are people who live in this Town who have always rented their homes.  Mr. 43 
Spurling asserted that with a primary residence, the guest/renter quality is no different than the 44 
experience his rentals provide.  He believes treating the two types of rentals differently is 45 
borderline illegal.  It’s not appropriate that because he’s not a resident he should have different 46 
restrictions.   47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 6 
 
 1 
Mr. Spurling suggested doing away with the three types of rentals and all renters follow the same 2 
rules.   3 
 4 
He noted occupancy restrictions were not changed since the previous discussion.  He was curious 5 
as to why the occupancy was not changed and he asked how it would be monitored.   6 
 7 
Mr. Wood noted that a resident of the Town that owns a second property is in the same rental 8 
category that Mr. Spurling is.  The draft ordinance was not differentiating based on where a 9 
person resides.  It was an attempt at stemming the tide of homes being sold sight-unseen to 10 
people who never plan to live in them.  Mr. Spurling argued that the Town can’t know 11 
someone’s intent.  He reiterated his concern about occupancy.  How would it be enforced?  What 12 
would count as a bedroom?   13 
 14 
Ms. Marshall noted that in addition to occupancy numbers, it’s about neighborhoods turning into 15 
transient vacation sites.  A house where a number of people show up is a different feel to a house 16 
where a family lives year-round.  She asked those in attendance to think about what happens if 17 
the Town does nothing.   18 
 19 
Chair Macauley noted he’s lived in Otter Creek for 30 years.  The Town has grown increasingly 20 
emptier in the winters.  The Town is trying to figure out what’s going on, but they can’t know 21 
what’s going on unless they look into it.  This is one step.  Ms. Dudman reported having been 22 
told that in 2023 there was a 35% increase over a year in short-term rentals. 23 
 24 
An audience member suggested it was likely because the taxes have risen as much as 40% in 25 
recent years.  If houses can’t be rented then the only people that can afford to buy them are from 26 
away.   27 
 28 
Mr. Thomas believed buyers may be deterred from buying a house if they can’t get a license.  29 
Ms. Dudman reiterated that if that buyer was intending to buy the property as a primary 30 
residence they could get a license.   31 
 32 
Resident Joe Renault understood the attempt at stemming the tide of losing year-round housing.  33 
He asked why, if there is no cap on short-term rentals and seasonal short-term rentals, will a 34 
license be required.  Mr. Musson noted that in order to establish the ordinance, the Town needs 35 
to understand the entire category.  The Town is trying to understand the nature of the various 36 
categories of rentals.  This will give the town more data.  What was learned from last year’s 37 
conversations was how we can tailor the ordinance more to the community so that the local 38 
tradition of renting can continue.  Mr. Renault understood Mr. Musson’s explanation; however, 39 
the conversation did not seem to indicate that type of rental as being a problem.   40 
 41 
Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk asked about the definitions.  She noted this one describes a 42 
residence as occupied for 180 days or more per calendar year.  The Harbor Ordinance describes a 43 
residence as occupied for 183 days or more per calendar year.  Half of a calendar year is 182.5 44 
days.  For consistency purposes, perhaps the Town’s ordinances should be uniform in the term, 45 
and this one could be changed to 183 days.  46 
 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 7 
 
The Town needs to better understand the rental picture.  Knowing how many rentals there are 1 
helps.  Ms. Savage asked if an ordinance was necessary to figure that information out.  Was a fee 2 
necessary?  Ms. Savage was in support of the concept but would like more information to feel 3 
good about the ordinance presented.  She lives here and therefore the ordinance doesn’t affect 4 
her like it will affect others.  But her kids might move elsewhere and still want to keep the home.  5 
The long-term effect should be studied further.  What will bring people to the island?  There are 6 
few professions here.  There is tourism, but this will cap some of that.  It might give the Town 7 
more information, but it might create more regulations that cause problems in the future. 8 
 9 
Chair Macauley noted that there’s no way to know what the future holds.  But anything in this 10 
draft ordinance can be changed or undone.  Other things to consider include an elderly 11 
population in the Town that owns their own home while on a fixed income and taxes are rising.  12 
Trade work is getting more expensive.  The Town needs to make some decisions on what they 13 
want their community to be.   14 
 15 
Kate Chaplin asked whether the Town is concerned that there will be a rush of residents that 16 
register their residence for rental, not because they rent, but to get themselves in the system.  17 
That would skew the numbers the Town is trying to determine.  She noted that by removing the 18 
caps the Town would get a better picture of what’s happening and remove the fear.  She felt the 19 
draft ordinance had a better chance of passing without the cap.   20 
 21 
Lincoln Millstein asserted that when Bar Harbor required registration, they had 740 rentals 22 
register.  People who did not rent at that time registered, just in case.  Now, that number is 642.  23 
People realized they panicked, and they didn’t need to register.   24 
 25 
Mr. Millstein asserted that in 2016 there were no Airbnb rentals on Mount Desert Island.  He 26 
stated that Bar Harbor had 800 Airbnb rentals during covid.  Mount Desert is at nearly 200.  Bar 27 
Harbor froze their rentals at 642.  Based on these figures, it could be theorized that Bar Harbor 28 
was heading toward a crisis where they could have had an overwhelming number of rentals.  He 29 
believed the Town would see a spike if they began licensing, but in the course of the first couple 30 
years that figure would subside.  With regard to renters using the shops and restaurants, he 31 
himself, and he believed other local residents, avoid those stores and restaurants because of the 32 
vacationers.   33 
 34 
Ms. Littlefield thanked those in attendance.  The Board has listened to the conversation and 35 
changes have been made based on the conversation and points made.   36 
 37 
MOTION:  Ms. Littlefield moved to close the public hearing. 38 
 39 
Sabina Wood reported she is a store owner in Town.  She talks to many of her clients.  She 40 
agrees with those who have pointed out how important it is to maintain those rentals if it allows 41 
them to function and be on the island year-round.  She was not opposed to registering; she is 42 
worried about the cap.  It’s hard to turn back the clock on the explosion of tourism on the island.  43 
She knows many people who can no longer afford to own a house here.  She hoped the issue 44 
could be looked at by all.  The ordinance must be very well thought out.   45 
 46 
Mr. Millstein believed the Motion made was being closing discussion off prematurely.   47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 8 
 
 1 
Ms. Littlefield stated that the issue has been discussed in meetings for months.  She reiterated 2 
that the Board is not voting on this issue.  The Selectboard is not the body that can make a 3 
decision.  The decision can only be made at Town Meeting by the residents of the Town.  She 4 
believed everyone made great comments.  She felt it was time to close the discussion.   5 
 6 
Ms. Dudman seconded the Motion. 7 
 8 
It was noted that the draft ordinance will be discussed and voted on May 7, 2024 at the Town 9 
Meeting. 10 
 11 
Motion approved 5-0. 12 

 13 
III. Post Public Hearing 14 

A.  Action if necessary 15 
No Action taken. 16 
 17 

IV. Minutes 18 
A. Approval of minutes from February 26, 2024 meeting 19 

MOTION:  Ms. Littlefield moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of the February 26, 20 
2024 Minutes as presented. 21 
Motion approved 5-0. 22 
 23 

B. Approval of minutes from March 4, 2024 meeting 24 
MOTION:  Ms. Littlefield moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of the March 4, 2024 25 
Minutes as presented. 26 
Motion approved 5-0. 27 
 28 
V. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 29 
None presented. 30 

 31 
VI. Consent Agenda 32 

A. Department Reports:  Highway, Buildings & Grounds, Solid Waste 33 
MOTION:  Ms. Littlefield moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acceptance of the Consent 34 
Agenda as presented. 35 
 36 
Chair Macauley thanked Public Works Director Henkel for the department’s good work during 37 
the storms. 38 
 39 
Mr. Wood asked about the number of trees on the lines along Route 198.  Director Henkel 40 
reported that he’s made several calls.  Others in Town have made calls as well.  There’s little the 41 
Town can do as the lines are not owned by the Town.  The wiring is for internet and not 42 
electricity.   43 
 44 
Mr. Wood asked about the Versant power shutdown coming up.  Director Henkel reported the 45 
work being done is switching power to new transformers.   46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 9 
 
 1 
Motion approved 5-0. 2 
 3 

VII. Selectboard’s Reports 4 
There were no reports. 5 

 6 
VIII. Unfinished Business 7 

A. Amendment of Public Space Special Event Permit 15-2023 – Garden Club of Mount Desert 8 
– Tracy Combs; Seal Harbor Village Green; Saturday, July 27, 2024 10am – 4:00 pm 9 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, amending the Public Space 10 
Special Event Permit 15-2023 – Garden Club of Mount Desert – Tracy Combs; Seal Harbor 11 
Village Green; Saturday, July 27, 2024 10am – 4:00 pm as presented. 12 
Motion approved 5-0. 13 

              14 
B. Withdrawal of the public space permit 16-2023 for the Sustainability Committee Sports 15 

Equipment Swap scheduled June 1, 2024 on the Northeast Harbor Village Green (date 16 
change and location change to Northeast Harbor Library) 17 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acceptance of the withdrawal 18 
of the public space permit 16-2023 for the Sustainability Committee Sports Equipment Swap 19 
scheduled June 1, 2024 on the Northeast Harbor Village Green (date change and location 20 
change to Northeast Harbor Library) as presented. 21 
Motion approved 5-0. 22 

  23 
C. Withdrawal of the public space permit 17-2023 for the Sustainability Committee Tool Swap 24 

scheduled April 20, 2024 on the Northeast Harbor Village Green (date change and 25 
location change to Northeast Harbor Library) 26 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acceptance of the withdrawal 27 
of the public space permit 17-2023 for the Sustainability Committee Tool Swap scheduled 28 
April 20, 2024 on the Northeast Harbor Village Green (date change and location change to 29 
Northeast Harbor Library) as presented. 30 
Motion approved 5-0. 31 

  32 
D. Review and approve the rejection of bids for construction of sidewalks in Somesville 33 
Director Henkel reported that there was only one bid received.  It was his inclination to reject it 34 
without other bids to compare it to, however the Town had received another bid for sidewalk 35 
work that offers comparison.  He discussed it with the consultant and contractor and reviewed 36 
the bidder’s references and feels comfortable in recommending approval of the bid received, 37 
contingent upon Town Meeting approval.   38 

 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, approving the rejection of bids 40 
for construction of sidewalks in Somesville as presented. 41 
Motion denied 0-5 (All Opposed). 42 

 43 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, that the Selectboard accept the 44 
bid from Gardner Concrete in the amount of $748,690.00 contingent upon approval of funding 45 
at the 2024 Annual Town Meeting and further, to authorize Public Works Director Henkel, on 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 10 
 

behalf of the Town, to enter into a contract with Gardner Concrete for the completion of the 1 
project as presented and discussed. 2 
Motion approved 5-0. 3 

 4 
IX. New Business 5 

A. Request to Authorize a Public Space Special Event Application to the Neighborhood House 6 
for Annual Memorial Day Community BBQ scheduled May 27, 2024 – Northeast Harbor 7 
Marina Green 8 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing a Public Space 9 
Special Event Application to the Neighborhood House for Annual Memorial Day Community 10 
BBQ scheduled May 27, 2024 – Northeast Harbor Marina Green as presented. 11 
Motion approved 5-0. 12 

 13 
B. Review and approve the acceptance of a bid from C+C Lynch Excavation, LLC for 14 

sidewalk improvements in Seal Harbor in the amount of $491,647.00 contingent upon 15 
approval of funding at the 2024 Annual Town Meeting 16 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acceptance of a bid from C+C 17 
Lynch Excavation, LLC for sidewalk improvements in Seal Harbor in the amount of 18 
$491,647.00 contingent upon approval of funding at the 2024 Annual Town Meeting as 19 
presented. 20 

 21 
It was clarified that this project will not include work repairing storm damage.  The warrant 22 
funding it consists of four components, one of which does include repairing storm damage.  23 
The details are included in the warrant. 24 

 25 
Motion approved 5-0. 26 

 27 
C. Review, Final Votes, and Sign Warrant for May 6 and 7, 2024 Annual Town Meeting 28 
Vote: 29 
a. Article 22, Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Short-Term Rental 30 
and Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance Ordinance” be enacted? 31 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to place Article 22, titled “Shall 32 
an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled ‘Short-Term Rental and Vacation Rental 33 
Licensing Ordinance Ordinance’ be enacted?” on the Warrant with no recommendation. 34 
Motion approved 5-0. 35 

 36 
b. Article 28, To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Denning Brook 37 
Road and Timber Ridge Road, serving the Denning Brook Estates Homeowners’ 38 
Association (DBEHOA). 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage 40 
Article 28 titled “To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Denning Brook Road 41 
and Timber Ridge Road, serving the Denning Brook Estates Homeowners’ Association 42 
(DBEHOA)” as presented. 43 
Motion approved 5-0. 44 

 45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 11 
 

c. Article 29, Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 1 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $355,000 to pay for a 2 
solar photovoltaic purchase and solar project development. 3 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 4 
29 titled “Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or 5 
notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $355,000 to pay for a solar photovoltaic 6 
purchase and solar project development” as presented. 7 
Motion approved 5-0. 8 

 9 
d. Article 30, Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 10 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $1,600,000 to pay for 11 
professional, technical, and construction services for the construction of or improvements 12 
to sidewalks and curbing in four locations. 13 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 14 
30 titled “Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or 15 
notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $1,600,000 to pay for professional, 16 
technical, and construction services for the construction of or improvements to sidewalks and 17 
curbing in four locations” as presented. 18 
Motion approved 5-0. 19 

 20 
e. Article 31, Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 21 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $650,000 to pay for 22 
professional, technical, and construction services for improvements to Old Firehouse 23 
Lane, the existing Town-owned “Grey Cow”, and “Great Harbor Maritime Museum” 24 
parking lots. 25 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, recommending for passage 26 
Article 31 titled “Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 27 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $650,000 to pay for 28 
professional, technical, and construction services for improvements to Old Firehouse Lane, the 29 
existing Town-owned ‘Grey Cow’, and ‘Great Harbor Maritime Museum’ parking lots” as 30 
presented. 31 
Motion approved 5-0. 32 

 33 
f. Article 32, Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 34 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $240,000 to pay for 35 
professional and technical services including, but not necessarily limited to, sanitary 36 
sewer line inspection and cleaning, smoke and dye testing, basement inspections, 37 
topographical survey, materials testing, and design. 38 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage 39 
Article 32 titled “Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 40 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $240,000 to pay for 41 
professional and technical services including, but not necessarily limited to, sanitary sewer line 42 
inspection and cleaning, smoke and dye testing, basement inspections, topographical survey, 43 
materials testing, and design” as presented. 44 
Motion approved 5-0. 45 

 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 12 
 

g. Article 44 (amended, revote), To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of 1 
Mount Desert will vote to raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, 2 
Service Fees and miscellaneous sources for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. Selectboard 3 
recommends $2,509,664.00. 4 
Manager Lunt explained the number in this Article is the correct number.  It was entered 5 
mistakenly previously and voted on.  The new number requires a revote. 6 

 7 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 8 
44 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise 9 
and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and miscellaneous sources 10 
for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” The Selectboard recommends $2,509,664.00 as presented. 11 
Motion approved 5-0. 12 

 13 
h. Article 59, To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 14 
increase the property tax levy limit by $443,576.00. 15 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage 16 
Article 59 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase 17 
the property tax levy limit by $443,576.00” as presented. 18 
Motion approved 5-0. 19 

 20 
X. Other Business 21 

There was no Other Business. 22 
 23 

XI. Treasurer’s Warrants 24 
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 25 

Town Invoices AP#2457 3/19/2024 $597,429.94 
Total   $597,429.94 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval and signature of 26 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 27 
Motion approved 5-0. 28 

 29 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown below: 30 

State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2455 

 
3/6/2024 

 
$110,062.88 

 AP#2456 3/13/2024 $5,709.50 
Town Payroll PR#2422 03/15/2024 $163,501.31 
Total   $279,273.69 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of signed Treasurer’s 31 
Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 32 
Motion approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention). 33 

 34 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 35 
Warrants as shown below: 36 

School Invoices AP#9 3/6/2024 $94,355.02 
 AP#10 3/12/2024 $75,383.50 
School Payroll PR#19 03/15/2024 $105,509.42 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of March 18, 2024 
Page 13 
 
Voided 
Disbursements 

   
$0 

Total   $275,247.94 
MOTION: Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acknowledgement of Treasurer’s 1 
Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown above. 2 
Motion approved 5-0. 3 

 4 
Grand Total   $1,151,951.57 

 5 
XII. Adjournment 6 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to adjourn. 7 
Motion approved 5-0. 8 

 9 
The Meeting adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 10 

 11 
 12 
Respectfully Submitted, 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
_____________________________ 17 
Geoffrey Wood 18 





APPOINTMENTS 

RECOGNITIONS 

RESIGNATIONS 

  





 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 
  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: March 27, 2024 
Re: Request for Appointment 

 

I would like to request and recommend that Mitchell Burr be appointed as a paid on-call 
Firefighter to the Mount Desert Fire Department, effective April 2, 2024 at a starting pay of 
$18.00 an hour.  

 

      Thank you.   

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 
www.mtdesert.org    highway@mtdesert.org 

 

MEMO   
  
To: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 
From: Ben Jacobs, Public Works Superintendent  
Re: Jaden Gordon 
Date: March 27, 2024 
 
As you know we typically hire 3 summer helpers each year, two for the refuse packer trucks, and 
one for buildings and grounds. For our 2024 summer season, I recommend the appointment of 
Jaden Gordon. He has accepted my verbal offer and understands his employment with us is 
subject to being appointed by the Board of Selectman. He also understands the offer is not for 
full-time employment with us, that there are no benefits associated with the proposed hire other 
than the earned paid leave law, is seasonal in nature and will end as described below.  
 
Based on working for the town during clean -up week as a helper in the past and a successful job 
interview, I request that Jaden Gordon be appointed as a part-time seasonal employee in our 
Building and Grounds division at an hourly rate of $25.00 per hour effective June 17,2024 
ending on or before September 13,2024. Jaden will assist our full-time Buildings and Grounds 
employee with mowing, weed whacking and cleaning. He is also willing to work other assigned 
duties for the Public Works Department other than those specifically identified as Building and 
Grounds 
 
Cc. Durlin Lunt Jr, Town Manager 
            Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
             

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:highway@mtdesert.org


 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 
www.mtdesert.org    highway@mtdesert.org 

 

MEMO   
  
To: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 
From: Ben Jacobs, Public Works Superintendent  
Re: Micheal Gibson 
Date: March 27, 2024 
 
As you know we typically hire 3 summer helpers each year, two for the refuse packer trucks, and 
one for buildings and grounds. For our 2024 summer season, I recommend the appointment of 
Micheal Gibson. He has accepted my verbal offer and understands his employment with us is 
subject to being appointed by the Board of Selectman. He also understands the offer is not for 
full-time employment with us, that there are no benefits associated with the proposed hire other 
than the earned paid leave law, are seasonal in nature and will end as described below.  
 
Based on working for the town during clean -up week as a helper in the past and a successful job 
interview, I request that Micheal Gibson be appointed as a part-time seasonal employee in our 
Waste Management division at an hourly rate of $25.00 per hour effective May 6,2024 ending on 
or before October 14, 2024. Micheal will assist one of our full time Refuse Packer Drivers on 
their daily route. He is also willing to work other assigned duties for the Public Works 
Department other than those specifically identified as Waste Management. 
 
Cc. Durlin Lunt Jr, Town Manager 
            Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
             

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:highway@mtdesert.org




CONSENT AGENDA 

  





 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
SHELLFISH COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 

Thursday, June 1, 2023 
5:00 PM 

 
Town Hall Meeting Room 

21 Sea Street 
Northeast Harbor 

(or ZOOM) 
 
 

Members Present: David Dunton, Brian Silverman (via Zoom), Earl Moore, and 
Rustin Taylor. Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Public Works Director Brian Henkel, 
and Wastewater Superintendent Ed Montague were also in attendance.  Also 
present via ZOOM were DMR Biologist Hannah Annis, DMR Marine Resource 
Scientist Hannah Horecka, and Shellfish Warden Adam Thurston. 

 
I. Call to order 5:00 p.m. 
II. Approval of 3/30/2023 Minutes 

MOTION:  Mr. Silverman moved, with Mr. Taylor seconding, to approve 
the minutes of 3/30/2023.  Motion carried 4-0. 

III. Warden Update 
Adam Thurston, Shellfish Warden, introduced himself and reported no 
violations or complaints from diggers since the last meeting. Regarding 
patrol of Bartlett’s Island, he said they don’t often go unless they have a 
complaint.  As harbormasters, they will occasionally go as needed. 

IV. State Update 
No updates to report. 

V. Old Business: 
A. Gilpatrick Cove discussion (MDWW Ed Montague and DMR Water 

Quality Hanna Horecka) 
Public Works Director, Brian Henkel and Wastewater Superintendent, 
Ed Montague introduced themselves to the committee. A discussion 
regarding the past pollution history from a residential sewer line 
ensued.  Superintendent Montague reported that the sewer line is 
now tied into the Town’s sewer system. 
DMR Scientist, Ms. Horecka, said samples of the water quality has 
improved in Gilpatrick Cove.  She brought up a black rubber pipe that 
runs over the flat (located on the east side of the cove and comes out 



 
 

of the rocks, running along the mud flats disappearing below the low-
tide line).  No-one is sure what it is, possible overboard discharge 
pipe?  It must be determined what the pipe is before they can move 
forward.  Mr. Montague said that the town has mapped the treatment 
plant system and there is no indication that it has anything running 
through there. 

It was asked if it is possible to re-open Gilpatrick Cove with conditional 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) closures.  Ms. Horecka said in 
order to do that a reevaluation of the WWTP would have to be done 
with the new protocols.  She said that a MOU would have to be set up 
with Public Works for reporting when there is an issue with 
discharges.  Mr. Montague explained that the Department of 
Environmental Protection (DEP) requires closure and the Town pays 
the state a fee for the percentage of acreage that is closed to shellfish 
harvesting for potential emergency due to a disinfection failure.  Ms. 
Horecka warned that there is a potential that other areas would have 
to be closed if a reevaluation is done and other issues are found. 
Discussion regarding what could be done included: 
1. Ask Kim Keene, Code Enforcement, to look into it as Plumbing 

Inspector for the Town to see if she could figure out what it is. 
2. Hire someone to find the source and remove it.  Public Works 

agreed to supply contact information. 
3. Ms. Horecka would work with her supervisor to see if they could 

create an open area by changing the prohibited area to a 
conditionally approved area.  She reported that standards and 
protocols have improved. 
Possible other resources were Brent Lawson, State LPI; and the 
DEP for licensing for overboard discharge. 

B. Update on the Army Core of Engineers permit for clam recruitment 
boxes in Otter Creek (permit application by Dr. Peterson) 
Mr. Taylor gave an update on the permit application of Dr. Peterson.  
Currently, there are 2 sites being studied in Bar Harbor.  He is allowed 
to add 4 additional sites without incurring further costs.  Chairman 
Taylor said this is a simple way to get baseline data for the area.  He 
did a demonstration of a clam recruitment box. 
The committee brainstormed additional sites:  Otter Cove, Sargents 
Cove, Somes Harbor, Head of Harbor by Asticou, and Gilpatrick Cove. 
DMR Biologist Ms. Annis agreed to assist in the research and follow 
up.  Warden Thurston stated that he could assist with looking out for 
them, especially at the Asticou area.  It was suggested that the 
harbormaster’s contact number be put on the boxes and to identify 
them as belonging to the Town. 



 
 

MOTION:  Mr. Taylor moved, with Mr. Silverman seconding, to 
approve chosen sites for the permit:  Otter Cove two sites (north and 
south), Sargeant Cove, and the Asticou (head of harbor) for the clam 
recruitment box locations.  Motion carried 4-0. 

C. Allocation Plan Approval 
Town Clerk, Claire Woolfolk, presented the allocation plan for 
approval with no changes from previous years.  Sales begin July 3, 
2023 (July 1st falls on the weekend). 
MOTION:  Mr. Taylor moved, with Mr. Silverman seconding, to 
approve the allocation plan as presented. Motion carried 4-0. 

D. Management Plan Update 
DMR Biologist, Ms. Annis, discussed the State’s requirement to file a 
Shellfish Management Plan, if we don’t have one already on file.  She 
directed the committee to the template located on the DMR website as 
a place to begin drafting the plan.  DMR would like to have the plans 
filed in the fall. 

E. Current Residential Clam License Holders report 
Discussion on how to recruit additional committee members ensued.  
Members agreed to invite recreational license holders to the next 
meeting. 

VI. New Business: 
None presented. 

V. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
Questions regarding the Gary Moore Cove closure.  Ms. Annis reported 
that the cove used to have a conditional seasonal closure, but that it is 
now open. 
Discussion followed for the next meeting; it was determined that 
November 2, 2023 would be placed on the calendar. 

VI. Adjournment 
MOTION:  Mr. Taylor moved, with Mr. Dunton seconding, to adjourn. 
Motion carried 4-0. 
The meeting adjourned at 5:58 PM.  



I:\Boards & Committees\Shellfish\2024\Minutes\Minutes 1-11-24.docx 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
SHELLFISH COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 

Thursday, January 11, 2024 
5:00 PM 

 
Town Office Conference Room 

21 Sea Street 
Northeast Harbor 

(or ZOOM) 
 

Members Present: David Dunton, Brian Silverman (via Zoom), Rustin Taylor, Earl 
Moore, and Town Clerk, Claire Woolfolk.   
I. Call to order 5:00 p.m. 

Chairman Taylor called the meeting to order at 5:05pm 

II. Warden Update 
No wardens present to report 

III. State Update 
DMR Biologist, Hannah Annis, was unable to attend, however she did 
forward an email with various updates and Town Clerk, Claire Woolfolk, 
provided members with the updates and documents: 

1. The Annual Review Letter/Deadline of due before April 1, 2024 
2. 2024 Allocation Applications: due at least 30 days before licenses go 

on sale 
3. 2024 Fisherman’s Forum Shellfish Focus Day: Thursday, February 29th 

- Seminar Schedule – Maine Fishermen's Forum 
(mainefishermensforum.org) 

4. DMR mini-grant opportunity: Email with info and documents  
5. Scuttlebutt pamphlet, a local effort (Gouldsboro and Harpswell), this 

guide provides info for new and existing town property owners and 
what it means to live in a working water front community including 
issues of shore access for shellfish harvesters.  : Scuttlebutt – 
Gouldsboro Shore AND Harpswell WW Guide 
(mainecoastfishermen.org) 

 
IV. Review and Finalize DMR Shellfish Management Plan for Town of Mount 

Desert 
The committee reviewed and finalized the Town of Mount Desert’s 
Shellfish Management Plan for submission to DMR.  Town Clerk, Claire 
Woolfolk, will submit the plan to DMR. 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmainefishermensforum.org%2Fseminar-schedule%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7Cc6db23e909844f0a303b08dc11e7e856%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638404937760651391%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8KVe6tf%2BkheMiWwxxXTNcqQl5NEhFf1Ct%2FsC%2F%2BF%2Bd5s%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmainefishermensforum.org%2Fseminar-schedule%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7Cc6db23e909844f0a303b08dc11e7e856%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638404937760651391%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8KVe6tf%2BkheMiWwxxXTNcqQl5NEhFf1Ct%2FsC%2F%2BF%2Bd5s%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgouldsboroshore.me%2F2023%2F11%2F01%2Fscuttlebutt%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7Cc6db23e909844f0a303b08dc11e7e856%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638404937760658441%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cC6t6pDI8y4UXm9ZCZGhMLkAGnO1TG%2Fdfh06ubd78ys%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgouldsboroshore.me%2F2023%2F11%2F01%2Fscuttlebutt%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7Cc6db23e909844f0a303b08dc11e7e856%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638404937760658441%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cC6t6pDI8y4UXm9ZCZGhMLkAGnO1TG%2Fdfh06ubd78ys%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mainecoastfishermen.org%2F_files%2Fugd%2F24e976_eebc06bd8a5e4ce19dd8b0c3f9dce60e.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7Cc6db23e909844f0a303b08dc11e7e856%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638404937760664269%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=52MtqEji7ZQx6YwvLlKKFdRhJR42ZFd2AIDKVJr9gKY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mainecoastfishermen.org%2F_files%2Fugd%2F24e976_eebc06bd8a5e4ce19dd8b0c3f9dce60e.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7Cc6db23e909844f0a303b08dc11e7e856%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638404937760664269%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=52MtqEji7ZQx6YwvLlKKFdRhJR42ZFd2AIDKVJr9gKY%3D&reserved=0


I:\Boards & Committees\Shellfish\2024\Minutes\Minutes 1-11-24.docx 
 

MOTION:  Mr. Taylor moved, with Mr. Dunton seconding, to approve the 
Town of Mount Desert Shellfish Management Plan and submit to DMR.  
Motion carried 4-0. 

V. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
Town Clerk, Claire Woolfolk, reported the sales of Shellfish Licenses to 
date: 

Residential Recreational    8 
Non-residential Recreational  1 
Residential Commercial   4 (2 post 90-day non-resident) 
Non-residential Commercial  1 
 

Discussion of when to schedule the next meeting.  It was determined that 
a meeting needs to be held before the end of March in order to approve 
the Annual Report for DMR and to vote for the allocation plan for the 
upcoming season. 
Next meeting will be on February 15, 2024. 

VI. Adjournment 
MOTION:  Mr. Taylor moved, with Mr. Silverman seconding, to adjourn. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

The meeting adjourned at 5:30 PM.  



 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
SHELLFISH COMMITTEE 

Minutes 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 
5:00 PM 

 
Town Hall Conference Room 

21 Sea Street 
Northeast Harbor 

 
Members Present: David Dunton, and Town Clerk, Claire Woolfolk.  Also present 
were DMR Biologist Hannah Annis, DMR Marine Resource Scientist Grace 
Robie and DMR Growing Area Supervisor David Miller. 
Due to a problem with the Zoom connection, members Rustin Taylor and Brian 
Silverman, as well as Warden Adam Thurston, and Dr. Chris Peterson could not 
attend. 

I. Call to order 5:00 p.m. 

Member David Dunton called the meeting to order at 5:19pm.  It was 
determined that since there wasn’t a quorum present, no business 
requiring a vote could be conducted. 

II. Approval of Minutes  

a. June 1, 2023 
b. January 11, 2024 

Tabled until the next meeting. 

III. Warden Update 

Tabled until the next meeting. 

IV. State Update 

DMR Biologist Hannah Annis reported on various items: 
1. The annual report is due April 1st. 
2. The Mount Desert Management Plan has been approved by DMR. 
3. Mini grants have been extended (and increased from $5,000 to 

$7,000).  Applications are due March 3, 2024.  Town Clerk Claire 
Woolfolk reported that the information was given out to committee 
members at the last meeting in January. 

4. Ms. Annis reminded us that Warden Recertification is on March 27, 
2024 from 1pm – 4pm in Augusta.  She said if the wardens are not 
receiving emails/notices directly, they can sign up on the Gov 



 
 

Delivery System (Maine Department of Marine Resources 
(govdelivery.com)).   

5. Listening Sessions take place up and down the coastline and are 
open to the public.  SAVE THE DATE! - DMR Aquaculture 
Listening Sessions | Department of Marine Resources (maine.gov)  
The next one will be held in Ellsworth on March 21, 2024 at 4pm at 
the Moore Community Center Theater. 

6. The next Fisherman’s Forum will be held on February 29, 2024 in 
Rockport.  This is a meeting for all things shellfish. 
 

V. Old Business: 

A. Update on the Army Core of Engineers permit for clam recruitment 
boxes in Otter Creek (permit application by Dr. Chris Petersen) 

Tabled until the next meeting. 

Dr. Petersen sent an email regarding possible clam regulation 
changes for Bar Harbor:   

Bar Harbor is considering expanding our shellfish ordinance to include 
quahogs, razor clams, hen clams, and oysters. The main way that this 
will affect your harvesters is that there are a few commercial 
harvesters that come to occasionally harvest quahogs here (unlike 
your committees - they aren't in our regs at the moment). These new 
regs would exclude those people, since we have over 100 rec 
licenses but only 1-3 commercial licenses in recent years (and a 10% 
rule, so no non-resident commercial licenses in town).  Rec diggers 
from your towns would now have to get a Bar Harbor non-res rec 
license to be able to harvest these species, right now rec harvesters 
can go in without any license and get a combined peck (or 3 bushels 
of hens).  
 
Right now our warden(s) (a couple of BH police do it part time) can’t 
enforce regs on any of these species, and adding the species to regs 
will allow them to do some enforcement on these species - we had 
some individuals say they were commercial harvesters come in and 
hit the resource hard, but if they were commercial harvesters I have 
never seen them around here. We also have a lot of tourists come 
there to harvest, clearly the spot has made some social media 
rounds.  Oysters are also going to close in the summer unless they 
are in regs, so by adding them we will allow for some rec harvesting 
during the year.  
 
He will try to attend our next meeting to report on it. 
 
 
 

https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/MEDMR/subscriber/new
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/MEDMR/subscriber/new
https://www.maine.gov/dmr/news/mon-01292024-1200-save-date-dmr-aquaculture-listening-sessions
https://www.maine.gov/dmr/news/mon-01292024-1200-save-date-dmr-aquaculture-listening-sessions


 
 

B. DMR Acceptance of the Mount Desert Management Plan 

Ms. Annis reported on this under the State Update above. 

C. Discussion with DMR Biologist regarding Gilpatrick Cove (pipe issue)  

DMR Marine Resource Scientist, Grace Robie, reviewed the 
Investigative Report on Water Quality dated February 14, 2024 (copy 
attached).  She said that no stations have failed (DMR requirements of 
<31 for P90s) of the most recent 30 samples.  It was noted that on 
page 3 the detail trend of Gilpatrick Cove standards have improved. 

Mr. Dunton asked if the results meant that this would support the 
opening of Gilpatrick Cove for harvesting.  Ms. Robie said that in order 
to open, some issues would have to be dealt with: 

1. The source of the black pipe in the cove would have to be 
determined.  The pipe would have to be capped or removed. 

a. It was asked if Mount Desert’s Code Enforcement Officer 
had looked at the pipe.  Town Clerk Woolfolk said Ms. 
Keene indicated that it was outside her jurisdiction as it 
goes into the intertidal waters (below the low-tide line. 
(DEP/DMR jurisdiction?)). 

b. DMR Growing Area Supervisor, David Miller, reported that 
the pipe does not show up on the DEP’s Overboard 
Discharge (OBD) database as being either active or 
inactive. 

c. Mount Desert’s Public Works wastewater management said 
it is not sourced in its mapping of the treatment plant system 
at the June 1, 2023 meeting. 

d. Mr. Miller said he would provide contact information for DEP 
OBD Compliance and DEP Licensing. 

2. Ms. Robie said that DMR would have to determine why Gilpatrick 
Cove was conditionally opened in 2007and determine if the 
situation has been resolved that prompted the closure.  It is 
thought that heavy rainfalls might be causing the spikes in the 
areas where culverts empty into the cove. 

3. State Mandates on the closure and DEP requirements for potential 
disinfection failures from the wastewater system. 

 
Ms. Robie also reported that Station 31 (Mason Point off Parker Farm 
Road) is under review to conditionally reopen in the fall, probably in 
September.  This area has approximately 35 acres of potential 
harvesting. 
 
 



 
 

VI. New Business: 

A. Review and Finalize 2023 DMR Shellfish Annual Report for Town of 
Mount Desert 

Since three of the committee members stayed after the last meeting 
(January 11, 2024) to review and amend the draft report, it was agreed 
that the report could be submitted to DMR without a vote.  Ms. Annis said 
that DMR does not need the report voted for approval. 

B. Allocation Plan Approval for July 2024 

Mr. Dunton expressed interest in perhaps reducing the allocations for the 
upcoming year.  Ms. Annis stated that any town considering license 
allocation changes in 2024 should include supporting information such as 
survey data, classification changes resulting in increased or decreased 
resource availability, and/or landings data. License allocation changes 
without supporting data are unlikely to be approved. 

 
VII. Such other business as may be legally conducted 

None presented. 

VIII. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 6:00 pm. 

 



 TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
WARRANT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
Minutes from: 

Tuesday, March 12, 2024  6:00PM 
 
 
Northeast Harbor Meeting Hall and via Zoom  

Members Present: Katrina Carter, Stephanie Reece, Tim Murphy, Mike 
Olsen, Lauren Kuffler, Donna Beals, Kathy Miller, Jerry Miller, Owen 
Craighead, Allen Kimmerly, Rosemary Matchak, Megan Bailey, Jamie 
Blaine, Carmen Sanford 

Zoom: Blakeslee Bell 

Excused: Phil Lichtenstein, Bill Ferm 

Absent: 

Guests: Heather Dorr, Principal MDES; Nancy Thurlow, Business/Finance 
Manager MDIRSS; Brian Henkel, Chairman MDES School Board 

6:04pm  Call Meeting to order, minutes from the February 27 meeting 
approved after attendance added. 

1. 6:10pm Heather Dorr presented a current snapshot of MDES. 
Principal Dorr discussed student enrollment breakdowns, staffing 
breakdowns and goals for the school.  MDES’s overall budget is up 
3.7% at $5,401,364.  The Town’s appropriation is up 15.07% at 
$5,039,078. 

The most significant increases/decreases to the budget: 

Transportation and Buses up 38.7% mostly due to a new replacement bus 
lease.  Regular Instruction up 9.2%.  Student and Staff Support up 11.4%. 
Facilities Maintenance down 18.26%. 

Principal Dorr and Business Manager Thurlow fielded a number of 
questions from the WC on specific line items in the budget, generalized 



questions about the health of the student body, the staff, administration and 
the facilities. 

Adjournment at 7:18pm 

 

Upcoming Meeting: Tuesday, March 19  Final Votes on Warrant.  Location 
TBD. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Owen Craighead, Recording Secretary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  



 

1 | P a g e  

NEWS RELEASE 
 

Disaster Field Operations Center East  
 

Release Date:  March 25, 2024  Contact: Michael Lampton (404) 331-0333 
Michael.Lampton@sba.gov 

Release Number: 24-275, ME 20172/20173 Follow us on X, Facebook, Blogs & Instagram 

SBA Offers Disaster Assistance to Businesses and Residents of Maine 

Affected by Severe Storms and Flooding   

WASHINGTON – Low-interest disaster loans from the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) are 

available to businesses and residents in Maine following the announcement of a Presidential disaster 
declaration due to severe storms and flooding that occurred on Jan. 9-13. 

“SBA’s mission-driven team stands ready to help Maine small businesses and residents impacted by this 

disaster in every way possible under President Biden’s disaster declaration for certain affected areas,” said 
SBA Administrator Isabel Casillas Guzman. “We’re committed to providing federal disaster loans swiftly 

and efficiently, with a customer-centric approach to help businesses and communities recover and 
rebuild.” 

The disaster declaration covers Cumberland, Hancock, Knox, Lincoln, Sagadahoc, Waldo, Washington, and 

York counties in Maine, which are eligible for both Physical and Economic Injury Disaster Loans from the 
SBA. Small businesses and most private nonprofit organizations in the following adjacent counties are 

eligible to apply only for SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loans (EIDLs): Androscoggin, Aroostook, Kennebec, 

Oxford, Penobscot, and Somerset in Maine; Strafford, Rockingham, and Carroll in New Hampshire. 

Disaster survivors should not wait to settle with their insurance company before applying for a disaster 

loan. If a survivor does not know how much of their loss will be covered by insurance or other sources, SBA 
can make a low-interest disaster loan for the total loss up to its loan limits, provided the borrower agrees 

to use insurance proceeds to reduce or repay the loan. 

Customer Service Representatives at SBA’s Business Recovery Center will assist business owners complete 
their disaster loan application, accept documents for existing applications, and provide updates on an 

application’s status. The Center will operate as indicated below until further notice: 

Business Recovery Center 

Hancock County 
 
General Bryant E. Moore Community Center  
125 State Street 

Ellsworth, ME 04605 

 
 Hours:         Monday - Friday, 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. 
                         Saturdays, 9 a.m. to 3 p.m. 
 

 Closed:        Sundays 

 

mailto:Michael.Lampton@sba.gov
https://twitter.com/SBAgov
http://www.facebook.com/sbagov
http://www.sba.gov/blogs
https://www.instagram.com/sbagov/
https://www.sba.gov/
https://www.sba.gov/person/isabella-casillas-guzman
https://www.google.com/maps/place/125+State+St,+Ellsworth,+ME+04605/@44.5464018,-68.4277135,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x4caef1ae0f040f45:0xded4a675f4ca970c!8m2!3d44.5464018!4d-68.4251386!16s%2Fg%2F11c43tgd0g?entry=ttu


 

2 | P a g e  

Businesses and private nonprofit organizations of any size may borrow up to $2 million to repair or replace 

disaster-damaged or destroyed real estate, machinery and equipment, inventory, and other business 

assets.   

For small businesses, small agricultural cooperatives, small businesses engaged in aquaculture and most 
private nonprofit organizations, the SBA offers Economic Injury Disaster Loans (EIDLs) to help meet 

working capital needs caused by the disaster. Economic Injury Disaster Loan assistance is available 
regardless of whether the business suffered any physical property damage. 

Disaster loans up to $500,000 are available to homeowners to repair or replace disaster-damaged or 
destroyed real estate. Homeowners and renters are eligible for up to $100,000 to repair or replace disaster-

damaged or destroyed personal property. 

Interest rates are as low as 4% for businesses, 3.25% for nonprofit organizations, and 2.688X% for 

homeowners and renters, with terms of up to 30 years. Interest does not begin to accrue, and monthly 

payments are not due, until 12 months from the date of the initial disbursement. Loan amounts and terms 
are set by the SBA and are based on each applicant’s financial condition. 

Building back smarter and stronger can be an effective recovery tool for future disasters. Applicants may 
be eligible for a loan amount increase of up to 20% of their physical damages, as verified by the SBA for 

mitigation purposes. Eligible mitigation improvements may include a safe room or storm shelter, sump 

pump, French drain or retaining wall to help protect property and occupants from future disasters.  

“The opportunity to include measures to help prevent future damage from occurring is a significant benefit 

of SBA’s disaster loan program, said  “Francisco Sánchez, Jr., associate administrator for the Office of 
Disaster Recovery and Resilience at the Small Business Administration.  “I encourage everyone to consult 

their contractors and emergency management mitigation specialists for ideas and apply for an SBA 
disaster loan increase for funding.” 

To be considered for all forms of disaster assistance, applicants should register online at 

DisasterAssistance.gov or download the FEMA mobile app. If online or mobile access is unavailable, 

applicants should call the FEMA toll-free helpline at 800-621-3362. Those who use 711-Relay or Video Relay 
Services should call 800-621-3362.  

Applicants may apply online and receive additional disaster assistance information at SBA.gov/disaster. 
Applicants may also call SBA’s Customer Service Center at (800) 659-2955 or email 

disastercustomerservice@sba.gov for more information on SBA disaster assistance. For people who are 

deaf, hard of hearing, or have a speech disability, please dial 7-1-1 to access telecommunications relay 
services. 

The filing deadline to return applications for physical property damage is May 20, 2024. The deadline to 
return economic injury applications is Dec. 23, 2024. 

### 

About the U.S. Small Business Administration  
The U.S. Small Business Administration helps power the American dream of business ownership. As the only go-to 

resource and voice for small businesses backed by the strength of the federal government, the SBA empowers 
entrepreneurs and small business owners with the resources and support they need to start, grow or expand 
their businesses, or recover from a declared disaster. It delivers services through an extensive network of SBA 

field offices and partnerships with public and private organizations. To learn more, visit www.sba.gov. 

https://www.sba.gov/funding-programs/disaster-assistance/economic-injury-disaster-loans
https://www.sba.gov/person/francisco-sanchez-jr
https://www.sba.gov/person/francisco-sanchez-jr
https://www.disasterassistance.gov/
https://www.sba.gov/funding-programs/disaster-assistance
https://www.sba.gov/funding-programs/disaster-assistance
mailto:disastercustomerservice@sba.gov
http://www.sba.gov/




 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  











 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 
  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: March 28, 2024 
Re: Request for a Select Board Amendment 

 

I would like to request the Select Board amend their original motion made at the January 16, 
2024, meeting approving the purchase a new 2024 GMC Sierra 3500HD Crew Cab pick-up 
truck in the amount of $56,320.00 to approving the purchase of said pick-up truck in the 
amount of $56,455.00. The additional $125.00 is for the document and administration fees 
which was inadvertently left off the original quote.    

 

      Thank you.   

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


 

NEW BUSINESS 

  







 
 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone     207-276-5531 Fax     207-276-3232 
  Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 

Jane E. Disney, Ph.D.         March 21, 2024 
Associate Professor of Environmental Health 
MDI Biological Laboratory 
P.O. Box 35 
Salisbury Cove, ME 04672 
 
Dear Dr. Disney,           
 
The Mt. Desert Shellfish Committee supports your proposal to the Davis Conservation Fund which will 
involve monitoring coastal mudflats for possible PFAS contamination. We are aware of the issue at Mt. 
Desert Island High School, where PFAS contamination in wastewater has been discovered in groundwater 
and surface water that drains to the head of Somes Sound.  
 
We were glad to hear about your planned research at our recent committee meeting.  The Sound used to be 
closed to commercial and recreational harvesting of softshell clams and mussels due to bacterial pollution. 
Over the last few decades, this area has been seasonally open to shellfish harvesting, partly due to improved 
water quality. Until now, bacterial contamination of mudflats has been the largest concern. Since that threat 
has been eliminated, it is now it is important to confirm whether the PFAS in groundwater and surface water 
near the high school and in the drinking water of neighbors who live directly across the road from Somes 
Sound is present in the mudflat environment.  

 
We are fortunate to have folks such as yourselves in our community with the knowledge and ability to help 
better understand these new and complex issues with our watersheds. I have been informed about PFAS 
and the known and unknown challenges PFAS contamination presents.  It's concerning and unfortunate to 
learn about local contamination. 
 
We support your efforts in researching how PFAS is moving through soil and groundwater, potentially into 
the marine environment of Somes Sound. We are glad to provide a letter of support for your research, which 
is one of many steps in better understanding how much and how far PFAS may or may not have spread in the 
area to date.  
  
The Shellfish Committee has a unique opportunity to contribute to your research and the health of our 
community and environment in this effort. We will assist with the project as needed.   We can support your 
efforts by providing shellfish harvested by local commercial fishermen for analysis of PFAS chemicals.  

 
Sincerely,  

 
 

 
Rustin Taylor 
Committee Chair 
Mt. Desert Shellfish Committee 

http://www.mtdesert.org/




















 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOMPENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS the Town of Mount Desert wishes to apply to the Department of Economic and 
Community Development for a Community Development Block Grant to carry out a community 
development program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning process required by Maine Law and the CDBG Program have been 
complied with, including participation in the planning process by low and moderate income families 
and individuals and the community has conducted at least one duly advertised public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS the Town of Mount Desert is cognizant of the requirement that should the intended 
National Objective of the CDBG program not be met all CDBG funds must be repaid to the State of 
Maine CDBG program; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Selectboard of the Community of Mount Desert that the 
Town/City Manager (or other local government official or officer): 
 
1) Is authorized and directed to submit an application for the following program(s) and dollar 

amount(s) within the State of Maine’s CDBG Program: 
 
Program:  Existing Multi-Family housing Rehabilitation Amount: $ 238,000.00 

 
   

 
To the Department of Economic and Community Development on behalf of the Community of 
Mount Desert, substantially in the form presented to this Selectboard: 

 
2) Is authorized to make assurances on behalf of the Community of Mount Desert required as part of 

such applications, and 
 
3) Is authorized and directed, upon acceptance of said funds to carry out the duties and 

responsibilities for implementing and said program(s), consistent with the Charter of the 
Community of Mount Desert and the laws and regulations governing planning and implementation 
of community development programs in the State of Maine. 

 
DATE ENACTED: April 1, 2024,         Municipal Seal 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES 
  
 Date 
  
 Date 
  
 Date 
  
 Date 
  
 Date 
 



State of Maine 
Community Development 

Block Grant Program 

2024 Housing Assistance Grant Program 
Letter of Intent to Apply 

Due at DECD on or before March 22, 2024, 4:00 p.m.

Letters of Intent may be submitted via email to: ocd.loi@maine.gov 
Please enter “HA LOI” in the subject line. 
All communities wishing to apply for a 2024 Housing Assistance Grant must use this Letter of Intent to document 
compliance with requirements established by Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended and the State of Maine CDBG program.  Applicants who submit a completed and approved Letter of Intent will 
be notified by OCD that they are eligible to submit a final application.  Eligibility to submit a final application does not imply 
final project approval or funding. Funds will not be available until after July 1, 2024. 

A. APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY
1. Legal Applicant:
Applicant: Town of Mount Desert Phone: 207-276-5531
Address: 21 Sea St., PO Box 248 Fax: 
City, ZIP: Northeast Harbor, ME 04662 E-Mail: manager@mtdesert.org 
Chief 
Official: 

Town Manager Durlin Lunt 

Grant Year of Last CDBG Housing Assistance Award: 
(This includes any multi-jurisdictional awards that the 
community benefitted from) N/A, no previous 

OCD Consultation Required 
Terry Ann Holden,  
Development Program Manager, OCD 
date of consultation 03.13.2024 

Applicant UEI (please visit www.sam.gov) #: C4M5JGZMSNK9 
Name and contact information for Developer overseeing the project 
Mount Desert Housing Authority 
Address: mailing address is PO Box 28 Phone: 207-288-4770 ext 111 
Town/City: Bar Harbor, ME 04609 E-Mail: weston.brehm@emdiha.org

2. Applying on Behalf of Sub-Grantee (if applicable): (e.g.: Non-Profit Housing Developer)
Sub-Grantee: Mount Desert Housing Authority Phone: 207-288-4770, ext 111
Address: Mailing address is PO Box 28 Fax: 
City, ZIP: Bar Harbor, ME 04609 E-Mail: weston.brehm@emdiha.org 
Agency Rep: Weston Brehm, E.D. Title Executive Director 

3. Engineer/Architect consulted for project & providing cost estimates (if applicable):
Name: Jerome Wuebbolt Phone: 603-384-2830
Firm: Right Trak Design, Inc. Fax: 
Address: 14B Tatro Dr. E-Mail: jwuebbolt@righttrakdesign.com 
City, ZIP: Goffstown, NH 03045 

mailto:ocd.loi@maine.gov
http://www.sam.gov/


B. CATEGORY
Place an “X” to the left of the HA category for which this Intent to Apply is being made: 

X 1. Existing Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation
2. Conversion of non-residential structures to Multi-Family Housing

C. PROJECT INFORMATION
Provide a clear, concise description of the proposed project using the space below. The scope of 
work should be very specific in identifying how the CDBG money will be used in meeting a National 
Objective of benefiting low-to-moderate income people.   

1. Will the project impact a Floodplain?   YES      NO X
2. Will the project impact a historic property YES      NO X

D. COST ESTIMATES & PROJECT FUNDING
Provide the estimated project cost, amount of CDBG funds to be requested and sources, amounts
and dates secured for all anticipated cash matching funds.  All applicable construction estimates
should be prepared by the Engineer/Architect (from section A-3). Consider the inflation rate in relation
to the anticipated starting date of the project and applicable DAVIS/BACON wage rates as they apply
to construction costs for projects over 7 units.

Total Estimated Project Cost: $371,000.00 CDBG 
Request: 

$238,000.00 

Funding Source Amount Date Secured 
1) Congressionally Directed
Spending Request (EDI/CPF)
Grant for FY23

$100,000.00 **Please see above NOTE** in item C, Project 
Information, thank you. (HUD is the managing 
agent for the CDS Grant review & award process.) 

2) Capital Fund   $33,000.00 04-30-2023

TOTAL: $133,000.00 

The Mount Desert Housing Authority (MDHA) is an 18-unit Public Housing Program apartment building 
located at Maple Lane, Northeast Harbor, ME. It is home to an elderly & disabled population. MDHA is in need 
of fire safety upgrades to ensure the continued health & safety of its vulnerable population. Toward that end, 
MDHA applied for funding through Congressional earmark to help accomplish the necessary upgrades; 
unfortunately, the award monies it has been approved for through that CDS request will not be sufficient to 
cover costs or allow completion of the Fire Safety Upgrades Project. Limited CDS funding, in combination with 
little available MDHA Capital Funds, necessitated a search for other sources of funding that could see the 
project through to completion. Monies awarded through CDBG would go directly toward fire safety upgrades 
at MDHA’s apartment building, Maple Lane, including sprinkler system installation and all that entails, and 
the infrastructure to bring the water line of proper size into the building. (NOTE: **While MDHA was informed 
in 2023 that we’d been approved to receive $100,000.00 via CDS grant, the process for required post approval 
submissions & review in order to be able to access the funding has been interminably long owing to under-staffing 
at HUD; to date MDHA still does not know when we will be able to draw upon the CDS funds!!**)  MDHA staff & 
residents would be appreciative of, and welcome, the opportunity to apply for a CDBG.





 

Date: March 28, 2024 

To: Selectboard 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Donation of Funds for a Speed Display Sign 

Concerned citizens approached the Selectboard at their August 7, 2023 meeting regarding traffic 

concerns on Jordan Pond Road in Seal Harbor. The Citizens were concerned with the volume and speed 

of the traffic and the frequency of delivery trucks. There is currently a speed display sign and data 

collector on Jordan Pond Road for southbound traffic. It was suggested at that meeting that an 

additional speed display sign and data collector for northbound traffic would be a useful addition for 

understanding the traffic patterns on Jordan Pond Road. Additionally, Friends of Acadia President, Eric 

Stiles, offered to offset the cost of the speed display sign. Friends of Acadia has issued a check in the 

amount of $2,000 toward the purchase of the sign. The remaining cost of the sign was split between the 

Public Works Department and the Mount Desert/Bar Harbor Police Department. Public Works 

recommends the Selectboard accept the donation of $2,000 for the purchase of a speed display sign to 

be installed on Jordan Pond Road. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Dave Kerns, Chief of Police 

Mae Wyler, Finance Director 

 

Memorandum 





Printed on recycled paper

130th MAINE LEGISLATURE

SECOND REGULAR SESSION-2022

Legislative Document No. 1821

H.P. 1354 House of Representatives, December 17, 2021

An Act To Make Interfering with an Election Official a Class C 
Crime

Approved for introduction by a majority of the Legislative Council pursuant to Joint Rule 
203.

Received by the Clerk of the House on December 15, 2021.  Referred to the Committee on 
Veterans and Legal Affairs pursuant to Joint Rule 308.2 and ordered printed pursuant to Joint 
Rule 401.

ROBERT B. HUNT
Clerk

Presented by Representative WHITE of Waterville.
Cosponsored by Senator FARRIN of Somerset and
Representatives: CAIAZZO of Scarborough, DUNPHY of Old Town, MADIGAN of 
Waterville, MORALES of South Portland, MORIARTY of Cumberland, RECKITT of South 
Portland, Senators: BALDACCI of Penobscot, LUCHINI of Hancock.



Page 1 - 130LR2346(01)

1 Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

2 Sec. 1.  17-A MRSA §751, sub-§2, as amended by PL 1997, c. 351, §2, is further 
3 amended to read:
4 2.   This section does not apply to:
5 A.  Refusal by a person to submit to an arrest or detention; or
6 B.  Escape by a person from official custody, as defined in section 755.; or
7 C.  Intentional interference by a person under Title 21-A, section 674, subsection 3, 
8 paragraph E.

9 Sec. 2.  21-A MRSA §674, sub-§3, ¶C, as amended by PL 2003, c. 447, §20, is 
10 further amended to read:
11 C.  Votes by using the name of another; or

12 Sec. 3.  21-A MRSA §674, sub-§3, ¶D, as enacted by PL 2003, c. 447, §21, is 
13 amended to read:
14 D.  Attempts to vote by using the name of another.; or

15 Sec. 4.  21-A MRSA §674, sub-§3, ¶E is enacted to read:
16 E.  Intentionally interferes by force, violence or intimidation or by any physical act 
17 with any public official who is in fact performing or the person believes is performing 
18 an official function relating to a federal, state or municipal election.

19 SUMMARY
20 This bill provides that a person commits a Class C crime if that person intentionally 
21 interferes by force, violence or intimidation or by any physical act with a public official 
22 who is in fact performing or the person believes is performing an official function relating 
23 to a federal, state or municipal election.  Current law provides that a person is guilty of 
24 obstructing government administration, which is a Class D crime, if the person 
25 intentionally interferes by force, violence or intimidation or by any physical act with a 
26 public servant performing or purporting to perform an official function.

20
21
22
23
24
25
26



 
 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

 

POVIDING FOR: Closure of Town Offices On Election Days, with Assessing, 
Code Enforcement, and Town Manager available to the public by appointment 
only. 

 

WHEREAS: It is common practice in other communities throughout the State of 
Maine for these offices to be closed on election days due to staffing and 
operational support; 

 

IT IS ORDERED: that the Mount Desert Selectboard approves the closure of the 
Town Office on election days moving forward.  

  

 

NOTE: Supporting data resulting from poll of Maine Town Clerks attached 

 

 

Given under our hands at Mount Desert this ____ day of ________ 2024, the 
Selectboard of the Town of Mount Desert:

Attest:  A True Copy 
 

_____________________________ 

           Town Clerk, Mount Desert 
 

___________________________ 
John B. Macauley, Chairman 
 
__________________________ 
James F. Mooers, Vice Chair 
 
__________________________ 
Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Martha T. Dudman 
 

___________________________ 
Geoffrey Wood 



Maine Offces Closed on Election Days
Town Responder Close Open
Abbot Lorna Marshall X
Augusta Alisha Ballard X
Bar Harbor Liz Graves X
Belfast Angie Crosby X
Brunswick Ali Burnette X
Camden Katrina Oakes X
China Angela Nelson X
Cumberland Jennifer S. Doten X
Damariscotta Cheryl Pinkham X
Falmouth Linda Case X
Farmington Amanda Tyler X
Glenburn Katie Allen X
Hancock Cheryl Robinson X
Harrison Kristen MacDonald X
Highland Plantation Patricia Dunphy X
Kennebunk Merton Brown X
Kittery Jillian Richards X
Lebanon Lynne M. Davis X
Lisbon Lisa M. Ward X
Livermore Amanda Tyler X
Lovell Sheri Pratt X
Mechanic Falls Janice Ferri X
Millinocket Diana Lakeman X
Minot Sara Farris X
Mount Vernon Amanda Tyler X
Newcastle Emma L. McKearney X
Nobleboro Robyn Clark X
Norridgewalk RICHARD A. LABELLE X
North Yarmouth Debbie Grover X
Old Orchard Kim McLaughlin X
Orland Tracy Patterson X
Owls Head Eleanor Stone X
Oxford Kathleen Dillingham X
Palermo Lynn Demo X
Parsonsfield Danielle Taylor X
Patten Billie Doody X
Peru Debra Coudrain X
Pownal Becky Taylor-Chase X
Sabattus Brenda Letourneau X
Sedgwick Lindsey Dow X
South Berwick Tyanne Vasapoli X
Southwest Harbor Jennifer E. LaHaye X
Swanville Christie X
Tomaston Melissa Stevens X
Union Tabatha Mac ARTHUR X
Van Buren Jessica L. Cyr X
Verona Island Lisa Sanborn X
Windsor Kelly McGlothin X
Winthrop Sarah Quimby X
York Lynn Osgood X

2/23/2024



 

J:\2024\Packets\4-1-2024 Packet Builder\6 New Business\Seal Harbor 3-10-24 storm repairs .docx  3/28/2024 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
March 28, 2024 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Seal Harbor 3-10-24 Storm repairs  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
I am asking for authorization to pay for repairs to the Seal Harbor Pier from damage sustained 
during the 3-10-24 storm. Ben Jacobs and I meet with L E Norwood and received an estimate of 
$2,100.00 to make the repairs needed. I am asking for your approval to pay Norwood Delaittre & 
Sons Inc $2,100.00 for the repair work out of the Seal Harbor Docks CIP reserve #6410200-
24600 the account has a balance of $83,709.92. I will be available for questions.  
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 4/1/2024

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2460 04/02/24 156,824.10$           
AP#2461 04/02/24 32,739.42$              

189,563.52$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2458 03/20/24 108,688.70$           
AP#2459 03/27/24 2,157.06$                

Town Payroll
PR#2423 03/29/24 177,902.85$           

288,748.61$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#20 03/29/24 209,668.61$           

Town Voids

209,668.61$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 687,980.74$        

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2024 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2024.04.01 Selectboard Meeting -
\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
3
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
7
8
.
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
5
9
1
.
2
7
 
 
 
3
8
.
6
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
,
3
5
4
.
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
,
7
0
9
.
5
4
 
 
 
7
6
.
0
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
2
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
,
1
8
5
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
7
5
.
7
7
 
 
 
6
7
.
3
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
9
0
0
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
9
9
.
8
9
 
 
 
4
0
.
6
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
6
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
,
9
9
2
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
7
,
0
5
2
.
3
1
 
 
1
0
8
.
0
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
1
,
9
9
5
.
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
,
8
5
5
.
2
3
 
 
 
7
3
.
7
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
,
6
2
3
.
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
5
8
8
.
3
7
 
 
 
7
4
.
5
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
0
9
3
.
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
3
9
0
.
1
9
 
 
 
7
3
.
5
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
,
2
5
0
.
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
,
7
4
9
.
8
3
 
 
 
3
7
.
4
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
0
9
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
7
9
0
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
6
.
5
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
,
9
6
2
.
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
9
2
4
.
2
8
 
 
 
8
6
.
0
%

2
1
1
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
M
u
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
m
-
O
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
8
0
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
1
9
.
1
7
 
 
 
3
9
.
6
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
5
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
4
7
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
1
.
7
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
6
,
4
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
,
1
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
9
,
8
9
4
.
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
,
2
1
9
.
3
4
 
 
 
4
3
.
7
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
1
,
7
0
4
,
1
0
7
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
3
,
2
2
6
.
7
5
 
 
 
7
5
.
2
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
4
9
6
.
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
3
.
7
0
 
 
 
6
6
.
6
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
3
,
0
6
5
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
2
9
.
7
4
 
 
 
6
8
.
6
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
1
,
5
9
8
,
8
9
1
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
5
,
1
7
6
.
9
7
 
 
 
7
9
.
8
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
9
,
2
1
4
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
,
9
4
2
.
0
8
 
 
 
6
9
.
7
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
,
4
2
3
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
1
,
1
8
4
.
1
8
 
 
 
6
3
.
2
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
6
,
5
7
7
.
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
7
,
0
4
1
.
9
3
 
 
 
6
9
.
5
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
,
0
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
5
,
1
0
1
.
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
,
9
2
7
.
9
4
 
 
 
6
9
.
7
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
6
6
2
.
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
3
9
.
5
4
 
 
 
7
9
.
2
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
9
0
0
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
4
9
.
1
1
 
 
 
8
9
.
2
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
6
4
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
5
.
2
9
 
 
 
8
0
.
8
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
9
.
5
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
2
,
0
2
7
,
2
5
2
.
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
6
,
7
3
6
.
9
6
 
 
 
9
2
.
0
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
0
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
5
3
 
 
1
4
,
1
7
8
,
8
8
4
 
 
1
0
,
8
8
7
,
8
9
3
.
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
3
,
2
9
0
,
9
9
0
.
0
2
 
 
 
7
6
.
8
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
3
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
0
,
6
3
3
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
6
8
7
.
4
4
 
 
 
7
8
.
4
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
3
4
.
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
6
5
.
7
1
 
 
 
4
0
.
9
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
8
.
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
7
1
.
7
0
 
 
 
1
3
.
1
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
1
0
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
1
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
5
.
9
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
1
,
8
7
6
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
0
,
2
0
3
.
2
9
 
 
 
7
3
.
0
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
3
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
2
,
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
5
3
 
 
1
5
,
0
3
0
,
9
6
4
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
,
7
7
0
.
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
3
,
5
2
1
,
1
9
3
.
3
1
 
 
 
7
6
.
6
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
60

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ap

ril
 2

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
03

40
th

ro
ug

h
32

03
76

98
,7

54
.0

2
$ 

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

32
68

th
ro

ug
h

32
81

58
,0

70
.0

8
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
15

6,
82

4.
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
6
8
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
9
0
4
 
I
N
T
U
I
T
I
V
E
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
7
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
7
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
6
9
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
1
0
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
5
4
6
.
7
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
5
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
0
1
2
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
0
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
3
.
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
4
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
1
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
6
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
4
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
7
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
6
7
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
1
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
3
5
 
C
O
N
N
E
C
T
I
V
I
T
Y
 
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
2
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
3
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
7
5
0
 
E
Y
E
M
A
R
T
 
E
X
P
R
E
S
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
4
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
.
7
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
6
.
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
4
0
.
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
0
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
8
5
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
5
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
2
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
2
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
6
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
5
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
9
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
0
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
7
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
2
 
M
O
D
E
R
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
D
E
R
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
8
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
7
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
G
L
O
B
A
L
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
9
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
1
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
0
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
1
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
0
2



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
6
7
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
4
1
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
0
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
1
7
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
4
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
3
2
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
4
6
2
.
0
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
0
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
9
 
A
 
C
L
I
M
A
T
E
 
T
O
 
T
H
R
I
V
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
5
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
5
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
1
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
0
 
B
E
N
 
C
 
W
O
R
C
E
S
T
E
R
,
 
I
I
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
2
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
A
D
M
I
R
A
L
 
F
I
R
E
 
&
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
9
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
3
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
1
4
5
 
D
O
N
A
L
D
 
M
 
A
N
D
E
R
S
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
4
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
1
 
A
U
T
O
M
O
T
I
V
E
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
T
O
O
L
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
5
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
5
.
7
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
5
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
 
A
W
A
R
D
S
 
S
I
G
N
A
G
E
 
&
 
T
R
O
P
H
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
6
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
P
U
B
L
I
S
H
I
N
G
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
7
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
1
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
5
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
2
9
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
2
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
8
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
6
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
3
3
.
8
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
8
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
4
 
B
R
A
D
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
A
W
N
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
1
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
A
D
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
A
W
N
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
7
5
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
3
7
.
1
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
9
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
5
 
C
M
A
A
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
4
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
0
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
5
8
 
T
E
A
M
 
E
J
P
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
,
 
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
1
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
1
.
7
8



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
1
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
3
6
 
E
L
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
S
 
A
N
D
 
S
O
F
T
W
A
R
E
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
.
9
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
2
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
 
F
B
I
-
L
E
E
D
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
3
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
2
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
4
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
0
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
5
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
0
5
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
5
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
5
4
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
.
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
.
5
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
6
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
3
.
7
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
7
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
8
 
A
L
I
S
I
O
N
 
K
I
E
F
F
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
8
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
.
8
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
2
.
9
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
9
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
4
 
H
A
R
O
L
D
 
M
A
C
Q
U
I
N
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
6
.
0
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
5
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
0
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
2
1
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
F
I
R
E
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
F
I
R
E
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
1
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
2
3
6
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
O
X
Y
/
 
S
P
E
C
 
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
4
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
4
.
2
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
2
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
5
7
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
F
E
D
E
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
O
F
 
F
I
R
E
F
I
G
H
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
3
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
0
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
6
.
7
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
4
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
5
6
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
R
E
V
I
E
W
 
C
O
M
M
I
T
T
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
5
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
.
8
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
7
.
4
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
6
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
8
8
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
4
2
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
0
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
4
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
7
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
.
5
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
8
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
 
O
L
V
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
6
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
6
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
9
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
0
6
 
O
N
L
I
N
E
 
M
O
O
R
I
N
G
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
0
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
6
5
 
P
E
R
M
A
-
L
I
N
E
 
C
O
R
P
 
O
F
 
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
.
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
.
7
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
1
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
8
7
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
2
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
1
4
 
T
I
S
 
B
R
E
W
E
R
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
4
0
.
0
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
3
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
4
2
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
7
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
7
.
2
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
4
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
5
6
 
V
A
R
N
E
Y
 
B
U
I
C
K
 
G
M
C
 
M
A
Z
D
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
4
4
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
4
4
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
5
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
0
6
 
W
I
T
M
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
.
0
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
6
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
7
6
 
Z
O
L
L
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
7
5
4
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
0
7
0
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
,
1
8
7
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
,
6
3
6
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
,
6
3
6
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
1
0
/
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
,
4
6
0
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
,
4
6
0
.
3
6



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
,
1
8
7
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
8
2
4
.
1
0

2
0
0
 
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
3
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
,
6
3
6
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
0
 
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
9
7
.
9
5

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
7
8
.
6
0

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
9
1
1
.
0
0

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
4
8
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
,
6
3
6
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
,
6
3
6
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
61

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ap

ril
 2

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
03

77
th

ro
ug

h
32

03
77

32
,7

39
.4

2
$ 

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
32

,7
39

.4
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
2
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
7
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
 
G
O
R
H
A
M
 
S
A
V
I
N
G
S
 
&
 
L
E
A
S
I
N
G
 
G
R
P
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
2
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
1
0
/
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
1
0
9
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
1
0
9
.
1
3



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
2
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
3
9
.
4
2

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
4
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1



0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
9
:
2
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
6
9
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
58

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 2
0,

 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
03

37
th

ro
ug

h
32

03
37

8,
36

5.
69

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

32
66

th
ro

ug
h

32
67

10
0,

32
3.

01
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
10

8,
68

8.
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: John Macauley
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2458 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Tuesday, March 19, 2024 6:18:30 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approve!

John B Macauley, Ph.D.
Otter Creek, Maine

On Tue, Mar 19, 2024 at 4:01 PM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 

Greetings,

 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2458 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount
of $108,688.70 for your approval.                      

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 

I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the
one required email approval.

Thank you!

Lisa Young,

Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email
is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.

mailto:jbmacauley3@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


24
59

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 2
7,

 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
03

38
th

ro
ug

h
32

03
39

2,
15

7.
06

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
2,

15
7.

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
23

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 2
9,

 2
02

4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

50
9

th
ro

ug
h

16
56

1

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

46
8

th
ro

ug
h

66
48

5

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
17

7,
90

2.
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: John Macauley
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2459 & PR#2423 Approval Request *SECOND REQUEST*
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2024 5:11:27 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approve

John B Macauley, Ph.D.
Otter Creek, Maine

On Thu, Mar 28, 2024 at 3:21 PM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

Greetings,

 

Attached are the following warrants for approval:

                                    Accounts Payable               #2459     total of          $2,157.06

                                    Payroll                                   #2423     total of          $177,902.85

 

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving or
rejecting.

 

 

I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.

Thank you!

 

Lisa Young,

Finance Clerk, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

mailto:jbmacauley3@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email
is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.

 







20

lyoung
Highlight




	Public Hearing
	PUBLIC HEARING Packet Divider Pages 
	Blank Page

	3-21 Classifieds pg6
	Nor Easter LL & SAP

	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	Selectboard Minutes 2024-03-11
	Selectboard Minutes 2024-03-18
	March 18, 2024


	Appointments
	APPOINTMENTS ETC Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -3
	Blank Page

	Burr
	Gordon - B&GSH-BJ2024 doc
	Re: Jaden Gordon

	Gibson - RefusePackerSH-BJ2024 doc
	Re: Micheal Gibson


	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	SHELLFISH Minutes
	Thursday, June 1, 2023
	21 Sea Street

	Minutes 1-11-24.pdf
	Thursday, January 11, 2024
	21 Sea Street


	Minutes  2-15-24.pdf
	Thursday, February 15, 2024
	21 Sea Street



	3-12-2024 Warrant Cmte. minutes
	Minutes from:
	Tuesday, March 12, 2024  6:00PM

	SBA_Offers_Disater_Assistance_2024_03_25

	Unfinished
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	Broadband Project Completion
	FD Reserve Account

	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	Nor Easter LL & SAP
	4-2024 Pottle Wedding
	Shellfish Committee LOS-Extended - Dr Disney Letter
	DOT Sign - Golf of Maine
	Otter Creek request
	Community Development Block Grant
	AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES

	FOA Memo Acceptance Gift Speed Sign 2024.03.28
	Office Closure - Election Days - BOS Order
	Office Closures for Elections - Survey.pdf
	Sheet1


	Seal Harbor 3-10-24 storm repairs 

	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer's Warrant
	2- AP2460 GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	3- AP458 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- Re_ Warrant AP#2458 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP459 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	6- PR2423 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2459 & PR#2423 Approval Request _SECOND REQUEST_.pdf
	8- BOS & UPLOAD.pdf

	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024-04-01 .pdf
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, April 1, 2024

	Blank Page



